
The Original Florida Tourism Task Force Meeting Agenda 
11/18/21 

  Page 1 

                                               
The Original Florida 

TOURISM TASK FORCE 
 

 
 
 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE 
 
 
 
 
 

  There will be a meeting of the Original Florida Tourism 
Task Force on November 18, 2021.  The meeting will be 
held at Alachua County Agriculture and Equestrian 
Center, 23100 West Newberry Road, Newberry, 
Florida, beginning at 10:00 a.m. 

   
   

 
 
  

-1-



The Original Florida Tourism Task Force Meeting Agenda 
11/18/21 

  Page 2 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Alachua County Agriculture and Equestrian Center 
23100 West Newberry Road,  
Newberry, FL 32669 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-2-



The Original Florida Tourism Task Force Meeting Agenda 
11/18/21 

  Page 3 

The Original Florida 
 

TOURISM TASK FORCE 
Meeting Agenda 

 
Alachua County Agriculture and Equestrian Center   November 18, 2021 
23100 West Newberry Road, Newberry, FL    Thursday, 10:00 a.m.  
Alachua County  
 

 
           PAGE NO. 
I. Call to Order, Introductions      

II. Approval of Agenda         3 

III. Approval of October 21, 2021 Meeting Minutes      5 
 

IV. Old Business 
 
A. Committee Reports 

1. Finance Committee 

 a.   Monthly Financial Report Review and Approval - September 30, 2021 9 

 b.  Amended Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget Review and Approval   35           

 
 B. Fiscal Year 2020-21 Regional Rural Development Grant    39 
         
  1. Website 
  2. e-newsletter       
  3. Website Blogs       47 
  4. Marketing Materials        
  5. Domestic Travel Shows      
  6. Advertising Campaign        
  7. Brochure Distribution 
  8. Scholarships         
  9. Professional Organization Memberships 
  10. Approval of Third Quarter Report and Reimbursement Submittal Package 71 
  
C. VISIT FLORIDA -       
  1.    Monthly Report        
 
 D. Staff Items - 
  1.  Live in North Florida 
  2. Fiscal Year 2021-22 Cooperative Regional Marketing Fee   81 
  3.  House Bill 6075 - Tourist Development Tax     83 
  4.  Senate Bill 434 - VISIT FLORIDA      89 
  

-3-



The Original Florida Tourism Task Force Meeting Agenda 
11/18/21 

  Page 4 

E. Other Old Business 
1. Updated Task Force Member Contact Information    91         

 2. 2022 Meeting Dates and Locations      97             
 
 F. Announcements 
 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
 
VI. Leadership Forum: TBD 
   
VII. Adjournment 
 
Date and Location of Next Meeting: 
 
The next regular meeting is scheduled to be held at 10:00 a.m. on January 20, 2022 at a location to be 
determined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
r:\original florida\task force meetings\agendas\2021\ofttf agenda 11-18-21.docx 

-4-



MINUTES OF 
The Original Florida  

TOURISM TASK FORCE 
 
Suwannee River Rendezvous Resort and Campground October 21, 2021 
828 NE Primrose Road, Mayo, FL Thursday, 10:00 a.m.  
Lafayette County  
  
MEMBERS PRESENT  
  
Will Sexton, Bradford County, Vice-Chair 
Ryan Fulford, Dixie County 
Patricia Watson, Gilchrist County 
Katrina Richardson, Jefferson County  
Craig Colton, Lafayette County, Chair 
Jackie Blount, Madison County  
Charissa Setzer, Suwannee County  
Thomas Herndon, Wakulla County  
Dale Walker, Union County 
 
STAFF PRESENT  
 
Lauren Yeatter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT 
 
Brian Avery, Alachua County 
Ron Gromoll, Alachua County  
Daniel Riddick, Bradford County  
Rod Butler, Columbia County  
Alden Rosner, Columbia County  
Paula Vann, Columbia County  
Russ McCallister, Dixie County  
Lee Deen, Gilchrist County 
David Ward, Jefferson County 
Carol McQueen, Levy County 
Tisha Whitehurst, Levy County 
Marlene Squires-Swanson, Madison County 
Teena Peavey, Suwannee County, Treasurer  
Sandy Beach, Taylor County  
Dawn Perez, Taylor County 
Natalie Knowles, Wakulla County 
 
OTHERS PRESENT  
 
Donna Creamer, Travel Show Coordinator 
Brenna Dacks, VISIT FLORIDA 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER, INTRODUCTIONS  

 Noting the presence of a quorum, Chair Craig Colton called the meeting to order at 10:04 a.m. 

II. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 Chair Colton requested approval of the meeting agenda, as presented.  

ACTION: Patricia Watson moved and Katrina Richardson seconded to approve the meeting 
agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

-5-



The Original Florida Tourism Task Force Meeting Minutes 
10/21/21 

Page 2 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 23, 2021 MINUTES 
 

Chair Colton asked for approval of the September 23, 2021 meeting minutes.  
 
ACTION: Dale Walker moved and Patricia Watson seconded to approve the September 23, 2021 

minutes as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
IV. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 A.  Committee Reports 
 

1. Finance Committee Report 
 
 a.   Monthly Financial Report Review and Approval 
 
  (1)  August 31, 2021 

 
ACTION: Dale Walker moved and Charissa Setzer seconded to approve the August 31, 2021 

monthly financial report as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

B.  Fiscal Year 2020-21 Regional Rural Development Grant 
 

 1. Website 
 2. e-Newsletter 
 3. Website Blogs 
  

ACTION: Patricia Watson moved and Katrina Richardson seconded to add Columbia County and 
Hamilton County to blogger Jo Clark’s schedule, and to pay for the additional blogs with 
Task Force funds.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 4. Marketing Materials 

5. Domestic Travel Shows 
 
Chair Colton and Thomas Herndon discussed attendance and participation at the Atlanta Travel 
and Adventure Show. 
 
Donna Creamer, Travel Show Coordinator, discussed future travel shows. 
 

 6. Advertising Campaign  
7. Brochure Distribution 

 8. Scholarships 
 9. Professional Organization Memberships 

 
C.  VISIT FLORIDA -  

 
1. Monthly Report  
 
Brenna Dacks presented the VISIT FLORIDA monthly report. 

  

-6-



The Original Florida Tourism Task Force Meeting Minutes 
10/21/21 

Page 3 
 

D.  Staff Items - None 
 

E.  Other Old Business 
 

1. Updated Task Force Member Contact Information 
2. 2021 Meeting Dates and Locations 

 
F.  Announcements 

 
  Task Force members made announcements of interest to the Task Force.   
 

V.   New Business 
 
VI. Leadership Forum:  None 
 
VII. Adjournment 
 
Date and Location of next meeting 
 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for 10:00 a.m., November 18, 2021 to be held in Alachua County at the 
Alachua County Agriculture and Equestrian Center. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:47 a.m. 
 
 
_______________________        11/18/21 
Craig Colton, Chair         Date 
 
 
Minutes prepared by Lauren Yeatter of the North Central Florida Regional Planning Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
r:\original florida\task force meetings\minutes\2021\of_minutes_10-21-21.docx 

-7-



-8-



-9-



-10-



-11-



-12-



-13-



-14-



-15-



-16-



-17-



-18-



-19-



-20-



-21-



-22-



-23-



-24-



-25-



-26-



-27-



-28-



-29-



-30-



-31-



-32-



-33-



-34-



-35-



-36-



-37-



-38-



Agreement No. D0179 

 
Page 16 of 26 

Rev. 7/8/2020 

ATTACHMENT 1 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 

 
1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  Section 288.018(1), F.S. establishes a matching grant program (the “Grant 
Program”) to provide funding to regionally based economic development organizations representing rural 
counties and communities for the purpose of building the professional capacity of their organizations. The 
Grant Program may also be used by an economic development organization to provide technical assistance to 
businesses within the rural counties and communities they serve. 

The Original Florida Tourism Task Force d/b/a Visit Natural North Florida (Tax Identification Number 59-
3534835) (“Grantee”) is an entity created and authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 
1969, section 163.01, Florida Statutes. Grantee promotes the natural historic and cultural attractions of the 
following counties: Alachua, Bradford, Columbia, Dixie, Gilchrist, Hamilton, Jefferson, Lafayette, Levy, 
Madison, Taylor, Union and Wakulla. (the “Region”). The Grantee’s goal is to enhance the economy, image, 
and quality of life through expanded tourism in the Region. Grantee has been awarded grant funds under the 
Program to provide marketing and promotional services, market research and professional enhancement 
training for the Region. 

 
2. GRANTEE RESPONSIBILITIES: Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall perform 
the following deliverables identified in this paragraph 2 and in paragraph 3 below. 

2.1 Website Maintenance and Operation: 

 Continue to maintain, host and operate its website, www.naturalnorthflorida.com, in order to better 
inform potential visitors of attractions and events within the region. Website maintenance may include, 
but is not limited to verifying and updating existing content. 

2.2 Electronic Newsletters: 

 Create and distribute electronic newsletters to potential visitors regarding tourist-oriented attractions, 
facilities and events within the Region. Grantee may request reimbursement for a maximum of four (4) 
electronic distributions. 

2.3 Website Blogs: 

 Post blogs on its website, www.naturalnorthflorida.com, in to inform visitors of tourist-oriented 
attractions and facilities within the Region. 

2.4 Exhibit at Domestic Travel Shows: 

 The task force will exhibit at a minimum of one(1) domestic travel show. At the shows, the Task Force 
will staff a booth, distribute brochures, guidebooks and other materials pertaining to the region and answer 
questions raised by show attendees. A maximum of two(2) Task Force representatives will staff travel 
show booths. 

2.5 Advertising: 

 The Task Force will engage in advertising campaigns consisting of online digital and/or print media 
advertising. At a minimum, the Task Force will place one digital or one print advertisement. 

2.6 Literature Distribution: 

 Distribute literature at VISIT FLORIDA welcome centers state-wide. Grantee may request 
reimbursement for this task a maximum of four (4) times during the agreement period. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACEDocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACE

-39-



Agreement No. D0179 

 
Page 17 of 26 

Rev. 7/8/2020 

2.7 Professional Enhancement Scholarships: 

 Provide professional enhancement scholarships to Grantee staff, board members and representatives of 
member organizations to attend training opportunities. Grantee may request reimbursement for in-
person, on-line, or virtual training sessions. 

2.8 Memberships in Professional Organizations: 

 Maintain memberships in or join professional organizations including but not limited to the Southeast 
Tourism Society, VISIT FLORIDA,the Florida Outdoor Writers Association and other tourism related 
organizations. 

3. DEO’S RESPONSIBILITIES:   

3.1 Monitor the ongoing activities and progress of Grantee as DEO deems necessary, to verify that 
all activities are being performed in accordance with the Agreement; 

3.2 Perform Agreement management responsibilities as stated herein; 

3.3 Reply to reasonable inquires pursuant to the Agreement and, 

3.4 Review Grantee’s invoices for accuracy and thoroughness, and if accepted process invoices on a 
timely basis. 

4. DELIVERABLES:    

 Grantee agrees to provide the following services as specified: 

Deliverable No. 1 – Website Maintenance and Enhancements 

Tasks   Minimum Level of Service and Required 
Documentation 

Financial Consequences 

Maintain, host and operate 
website in accordance with 
Scope of Work 2.1 

Grantee must provide ongoing website hosting 
and operation. 
Required Documentation: 

 Copy of agreement with vendor; 

 Invoice from provider detailing work 
completed; 

 Copy of website analytics. 

 Proof of payment 
 
 

Failure to maintain, host, and 
operate website as specified in 
Scope of Work 2.1 will result in 
non-payment. 

Deliverable No. 2 – Electronic Newsletters 

Tasks   Minimum Level of Service and Required 
Documentation 

Financial Consequences 

Distribute Electronic 
Newsletters in accordance 
with Scope of Work 2.2 

Grantee must prepare and distribute at least one 
(1) electronic newsletter. Grantee may request 
reimbursement for a maximum of four (4) 
electronic newsletter distributions during the 
agreement period. 
Required Documentation: 

 Include DEO Agreement Manager on 
electronic newsletter distribution list 

 Copy of invoice; 

 Proof of payment. 

Failure to prepare and distribute 
a minimum of one (1) electronic 
newsletter as specified in Scope 
of Work 2.2 will result in non-
payment. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACEDocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACE

-40-



Agreement No. D0179 

 
Page 18 of 26 

Rev. 7/8/2020 

Deliverable No. 3 – Website Blogs 

Tasks   Minimum Level of Service and Required 
Documentation 

Financial Consequences 

Post blogs on Grantee’s 
website in accordance with 
Scope of Work 2.3 

Post a minimum of one (1) blog on Grantee’s 
website. 
Required Documentation: 

 Copy of agreement with blogger 

 Link to each blog 

 Photographer release form if necessary 

 Model release for if necessary 

 Invoice from blogger 

 Proof of payment 

Failure to post a minimum of 
one (1) blog on Grantee’s 
website as specified in Scope of 
Work 2.3 will result in non-
payment. 

Deliverable No. 4 Exhibit at domestic travel shows 

Tasks Minimum Level of Service and Required 
Documentation 

Financial Consequences 

Exhibit at domestic travel 
shows in accordance with 
Scope of Work 2.4 

Grantee must exhibit at a minimum of one (1) 
domestic travel show. 
Required Documentation: 

 Schedule for each show exhibited 

 Copies of completed registrations for each 
travel show attended 

 Copies of rental agreements if applicable 

 Competed travel documentation for a 
maximum of two (2) travelers 

Failure to exhibit at a minimum 
of one (1) domestic travel show 
as specified in Scope of Work 
2.4 will result in non-payment. 

Deliverable No. 5 – Advertising 

Tasks Minimum Level of Service and Required 
Documentation 

Financial Consequences 

Conduct advertising 
campaign in accordance 
with Scope of Work 2.5 

Grantee must place a minimum of one (1) digital 
or print media advertisement. 
Required Documentation: 

 Copy of print or digital advertisement 

 Invoice from provider 

Failure to place one (1) digital or 
print media advertisement as 
specified in Scope of Work 2.5 
will result in non-payment 

Deliverable No. 6 – Literature Distribution 

Tasks Minimum Level of Service and Required 
Documentation 

Financial Consequences 

Distribute literature in 
accordance with Scope of 
Work 2.6 

Grantee must distribute a minimum of two 
thousand (2,000) pieces of literature. Grantee 
may request reimbursement a maximum of four 
(4) times during the agreement period. 
Required Documentation: 

 1 sample of each brochure distributed 

 Copy of distribution list and number 
distributed 

 Invoice from provider 

 Proof of payment 

Failure to distribute a minimum 
of two thousand (2,000) pieces 
of literature as specified in 
Scope of Work 2.6 will result in 
non-payment. 

Deliverable No. 7 – Professional enhancement scholarships 

Tasks Minimum Level of Service and Required 
Documentation 

Financial Consequences 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACEDocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACE

-41-



Agreement No. D0179 

 
Page 19 of 26 

Rev. 7/8/2020 

Professional enhancement 
scholarships in accordance 
with Scope of Work 2.7 

Grantee must provide one (1) professional 
enhancement scholarship. 
Required documentation: 

 Completed event registration forms 

 Invoice for registration fee 

 Agenda for each event 

 Summary of how attendance at the event built 
professional capacity 

 Completed travel documentation 
 
 

Failure to provide a minimum 
of one (1) professional 
enhancement scholarship as 
specified in Scope of Work 2.7 
will result in non-payment. 

Deliverable No. 8 – Maintain memberships in professional organizations 

Tasks Minimum Level of Service and Required 
Documentation 

Financial Consequences 

Maintain memberships in 
or join professional 
organizations in 
accordance with Scope of 
Work 2.8 

Grantee must maintain membership in one (1) 
professional organization. 
Required Documentation: 

 Copy of registration for each professional 
organization membership joined or 
maintained 

Failure to maintain membership 
in one (1) professional 
organization as specified in 
Scope of Work 2.8 will result in 
non-payment. 

Total Costs Not to Exceed $50,000.00 

 
COST SHIFTING:  The deliverable amounts specified within the Deliverables section 4 table above are 
established based on the Parties’ estimation of sufficient delivery of services fulfilling grant purposes under the 
Agreement in order to designate payment points during the Agreement Period; however, this is not intended 
to restrict DEO’s ability to approve and reimburse allowable costs Grantee incurred providing the deliverables 
herein. Prior written approval from DEO’s Agreement Manager is required for changes to the above 
Deliverable amounts that do not exceed 10% of each deliverable total funding amount. Changes that exceed 
10% of each deliverable total funding amount will require a formal written amendment request from Grantee, 
as described in MODIFICATION section of the Agreement. Regardless, in no event shall DEO reimburse 
costs of more than the total amount of this Agreement. 

 

5.  REPORTING 

 5.1  Quarterly: Grantee shall provide a quarterly report listing all progress relating to the Deliverables in 

Section 4. Quarterly reports are due to DEO within 30 calendar days after the end of each quarter, until 

submission of the final invoice package. The ending dates for each quarter of the program year are April 30, 

2021, July 31, 2021, October 31, 2021 and January 20, 2022. The quarterly report shall include a summary of 

project progress, indicating percentage of completion of each Deliverable, the Minority and Service-Disabled 

Veteran Business Enterprise Report, and all additional reports which are required pursuant to this Agreement, 

including but not limited to, reports documenting the positive return on investment to the State that results 

from Grantee’s project and its use of Award Funds. The summary shall also include any issues or events 

occurring which affect the ability of the Grantee to meet the terms of this Agreement. If all required reports 

and copies are not sent to DEO or are not completed in a manner acceptable to DEO, payments may be 

withheld until the reports are properly completed or otherwise allowable by law.   

5.2  Minority and Service-Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Report: Quarterly, Grantee shall provide 
a Minority and Service-Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Report for each invoice period summarizing the 
participation of certified and non-certified minority and service-disabled veteran subcontractors and material 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACEDocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACE

-42-



Agreement No. D0179 

 
Page 20 of 26 

Rev. 7/8/2020 

suppliers for that period and the project to date. Grantee shall include the names, addresses, and dollar amount 
of each certified and non-certified Minority Business Enterprise and Service-Disabled Veteran Enterprise 
participant. DEO’s Minority Coordinator can be reached at (850) 245-7471 to answer concerns and questions. 

5.3  Close-out Report: No later than 60 calendar days after the Agreement ends or is terminated, Grantee 
shall provide copies of all paid invoices to document completed work. 

 

6.  INVOICE SUBMITTAL AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE: DEO shall pay Grantee in accordance 
with the following schedule in the amount identified per deliverable in Section 4 above. The deliverable amount 
specified does not establish the value of the deliverable. In accordance with the requirements of s. 215.971(1), 
F.S., and the Audit Requirements and Compliance section of this Agreement, Grantee and its 
subcontractors may only expend funding under this Agreement for allowable costs resulting from obligations 
incurred during the Agreement period. 

        6.1  Grantee shall provide one invoice per quarter for all services rendered during the applicable period. 
Grantee shall submit invoices as set forth below to be eligible to receive and retain payment for the performance 
of duties and completion of deliverables set forth above. Grantee shall submit all documentation necessary to 
support Grantee’s expenditures. DEO may request any information from Grantee that DEO deems necessary 
to verify that Grantee has performed the services for which payment is requested. Grantee’s submission of 
each invoice package is Grantee’s certification that it has performed the services and incurred the costs in 
compliance with all applicable laws and the terms of this Agreement. Grantee will provide invoices in 
accordance with the requirements of the Reference Guide for State Expenditures available at: 
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.p
df . Invoices must be legible and must clearly reflect the performance for which payment is sought. Payment 
does not become due under this Agreement until DEO accepts and approves the invoiced deliverable(s) and 
any required report(s). At DEO’s option, Grantee may submit invoices electronically. Grantee shall submit its 
final invoice for payment to DEO no later than 60 days after this Agreement ends and DEO may, at DEO’s 
sole and absolute discretion, refuse to honor any requests for payment submitted after this deadline. 

6.2  Invoices must contain the Grantee’s name, address, federal employer identification number or other 
applicable Grantee identification number, the Agreement number, the invoice number, and the invoice period. 
Grantee shall submit the following documents with the itemized invoice:  

6.2.1  A cover letter signed by the Grantee’s Chairperson of the Board of Directors certifying that the 
costs being claimed in the invoice package: (1) are specifically for the project represented to the State in the 
budget appropriation; (2) are for one or more of the components as stated in Section 4, Deliverables, of this 
Scope of Work; (3) have been paid; and (4) were incurred during the Agreement period. 

6.2.2 Grantee’s invoices shall include the date, period in which work was performed, amount of 
reimbursement, and work completed to date;  

6.2.3 Travel documentation with a completed State of Florida Travel Reimbursement Form, 
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Forms/DFS-AA-15VoucherforReimbursement.xlsx;   

6.2.4  A copy of all supporting documentation for vendor payments; 

6.2.5  A copy of the cancelled check(s) specific to the project; and 

6.2.6  A copy of the bank statement that includes the cancelled check. 

6.2.7 Proof of Financial Match indicating the amount of non-state Matching Funds raised to date, the 
name of the organization, business or person making the donation, the date an d amount of the donation, check 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACEDocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACE

-43-

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Forms/DFS-AA-15VoucherforReimbursement.xlsx


Agreement No. D0179 

 
Page 21 of 26 

Rev. 7/8/2020 

number and a copy of the check. Documentation for in-kind donations shall include, the name and contact 
information of the entity providing in-kind donation and the date and value of the donation. 

6.3  The State may require any other information from Grantee that the State deems necessary to verify 
that the services have been rendered under the Agreement. 

6.4  All documentation necessary to support payment requests must be submitted with Grantee’s invoice 
for DEO’s review. 

7.  FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES FOR FAILURE TO TIMELY AND SATISFACTORILY 
PERFORM: Failure to complete all deliverables in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement, and 
most particularly the deliverables specified above in Section 4, Deliverables, will result in DEO’s assessment of 
the specified financial consequences. If appropriate, should the Parties agree to a corrective action plan, the 
plan shall specify additional financial consequences to be applied after the effective date of the corrective action 
plan. This provision for financial consequences shall in no manner affect DEO’s right to terminate the 
Agreement as provided elsewhere in the Agreement.   

 

 
 

- End of Attachment 1 (Scope of Work) - 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACEDocuSign Envelope ID: C923D8EC-9025-4A38-BFBD-F5759EA04ACE

-44-



Fl
or
id
a 
De

pa
rt
m
en

t o
f E

co
no

m
ic
 O
pp

or
tu
ni
ty

Fi
sc
al
 Y
ea
r 2

02
0‐
21

 R
eg
io
na
l R
ur
al
 D
ev
el
op

m
en

t G
ra
nt

(Ja
nu

ar
y 
20

, 2
02

1 
‐ J
an
ua
ry
 1
9,
 2
02

2)
Pr
op

os
ed

 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
s a

nd
 C
os
t E

st
im

at
es

Se
pt
em

be
r 1

0,
 2
02

0

Co
st
 E
st
im

at
es

9/
10

/2
02

0
$6

,0
00

.0
0

W
eb

sit
e 
Ho

st
in
g 
&
 M

ai
nt
en

an
ce

$0
.0
0

VI
SI
T 
FL
O
RI
DA

 R
et
ar
ge
tin

g 
Ca
m
pa
ig
n

$5
,1
00

.0
0

W
eb

sit
e 
Bl
og
s

$0
.0
0

To
w
n 
Bl
og
s

$0
.0
0

De
sig

n 
an
d 
Pr
in
t C

ol
la
te
ra
l M

at
er
ia
l

$7
,5
00

.0
0

Do
m
es
tic

 T
ra
ve
l S
ho

w
s (
1 
sh
ow

)
$9

,0
00

.0
0

Pr
in
t A

dv
er
tis
in
g 
(F
lo
rid

a 
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
tio

n 
M
ap
) 

$0
.0
0

Di
gi
ta
l A

dv
er
tis
in
g 
Ca
m
pa
ig
n 
 (F
ac
eb

oo
k,
 G
oo

gl
e 
Ad

w
or
d 
se
ar
ch
)

$6
,9
00

.0
0

Sc
ho

la
rs
hi
ps
 (4

 S
ch
ol
ar
sh
ip
s)

$0
.0
0

Vi
sa
Vu

es
$1

,5
00

.0
0

Pr
of
es
sio

na
l O

rg
an
iza

tio
n 
M
em

be
rs
hi
ps

$6
,5
00

.0
0

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 e
N
ew

sle
tt
er
s

$7
,5
00

.0
0

Ad
m
in
ist
ra
tio

n
$5

0,
00

0.
00

To
ta
l

De
liv
er
ab
le

-45-



-46-



T
R

A
V

E
L 

B
LO

G
S

TH
E

 2
5 

B
E

S
T 

TH
IN

G
S

 T
O

 D
O

 IN
 L

E
V

Y 
C

O
U

N
TY

(H
TT

P
S

://
W

W
W

.N
AT

U
R

A
LN

O
R

TH
FL

O
R

ID
A

.C
O

M
/B

LO
G

/T
H

E
-2

5-
B

E
S

T-
TH

IN
G

S
-T

O
-D

O
-IN

-L
E

V
Y-

C
O

U
N

TY
/)

P
os

te
d 

on
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

9,
 2

02
1 

(h
ttp

s:
//w

w
w

.n
at

ur
al

no
rth

flo
rid

a.
co

m
/b

lo
g/

th
e-

25
-b

es
t-t

hi
ng

s-
to

-d
o-

in
-le

vy
-c

ou
nt

y/
) b

y 
Jo

 C
la

rk
(h

ttp
s:

//w
w

w
.n

at
ur

al
no

rth
flo

rid
a.

co
m

/b
lo

g/
au

th
or

/c
la

rk
/)

B
oa

rd
w

al
k 

ov
er

 th
e 

sw
am

p 
at

 L
ow

er
 S

uw
an

ne
e 

N
at

io
na

l W
ild

lif
e 

R
ef

ug
e

Le
vy

 C
o

u
n

ty
, F

lo
ri

d
a,

 is
 a

 m
as

te
r 

at
 h

id
d

en
 je

w
el

s.
 T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
sm

al
l t

o
w

n
s 

in
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
n

ty
 t

h
at

 p
eo

p
le

 t
en

d
 t

o
 s

p
ee

d
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 o
n

th
e 

w
ay

 s
o

m
ew

h
er

e 
el

se
—

m
is

si
n

g 
o

u
t 

o
n

 s
o

m
e 

o
f t

h
e 

b
es

t 
th

in
gs

 F
lo

ri
d

a 
h

as
 t

o
 o

ff
er

. S
lo

w
 d

o
w

n
, s

to
p

 a
 w

h
ile

, a
n

d
 a

sk
 a

 lo
ca

l

w
h

er
e 

to
 g

o
. B

u
t,

 p
le

as
e…

ss
sh

h
h

h
h

…
 le

t’
s 

ke
ep

 it
 q

u
ie

t!

T
h

e 
Si

er
ra

 C
lu

b
 g

o
t 

it
s 

st
ar

t 
h

er
e 

in
 1

8
6

7
, w

h
en

 J
o

h
n

 M
u

ir
 w

al
ke

d
 1

,0
0

0
 m

ile
s 

fr
o

m
 In

d
ia

n
a 

to
 F

lo
ri

d
a.

 H
e 

st
ay

ed
 t

o
 r

ec
ov

er

fr
o

m
 m

al
ar

ia
 a

n
d

 b
eg

an
 w

ri
ti

n
g 

ab
o

u
t 

m
an

’s
 r

el
at

io
n

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 n

at
u

re
.

 (/
)

Jo
 C

la
rk

 e
nj

oy
in

g 
th

e 
st

re
et

 m
ur

al
 “p

os
tc

ar
d”

 in
 C

ed
ar

 K
ey

1
. C

ed
ar

 K
ey

C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 is

 a
n

 is
la

n
d

 ju
st

 5
0

 m
ile

s 
so

u
th

w
es

t 
o

f G
ai

n
es

vi
lle

, a
n

d
 le

ss
 t

h
an

 t
h

re
e 

h
o

u
rs

 fr
o

m
 O

rl
an

d
o

 o
r 

Ta
m

p
a 

B
ay

. O
n

e 
w

ay
 in

an
d

 o
n

e 
w

ay
 o

u
t,

 H
ig

hw
ay

 2
4

 c
u

ts
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 m
ar

sh
es

 a
n

d
 c

ro
ss

es
 s

m
al

l b
ri

d
ge

s 
w

it
h

 p
ic

tu
re

sq
u

e 
vi

ew
s,

 u
n

ti
l y

o
u

 a
re

 s
it

ti
n

g

th
re

e 
m

ile
s 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e 
G

u
lf

 o
f M

ex
ic

o
.

A
 �

sh
in

g 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y,

 C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 (h

tt
p

s:
//

ce
d

ar
ke

y.
o

rg
/)

 is
 h

o
m

e 
to

 8
0

0
 fu

ll-
ti

m
e 

re
si

d
en

ts
. I

n
 t

h
is

 v
ill

ag
e,

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 e

n
jo

y 
a

si
m

p
le

r 
w

ay
 o

f l
if

e—
en

jo
y 

th
is

 c
h

an
ce

 t
o

 “
u

n
p

lu
g.

”

P
u

ff
er

�
sh

 w
it

h
 a

n
 a

tt
it

u
d

e!
Lo

ca
l �

sh
in

g 
sc

en
e

-47-



2
. A

rt
 

C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 h

as
 b

ec
o

m
e 

kn
o

w
n

 a
s 

q
u

it
e 

th
e 

ar
t 

co
lo

ny
. M

an
y 

ar
ti

st
s 

liv
e 

th
er

e 
ye

ar
-r

o
u

n
d

, a
n

d
 s

o
m

e 
ju

st
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

se
as

o
n

.

Se
ve

ra
l g

al
le

ri
es

 d
is

p
la

y 
th

ei
r 

w
o

rk
. I

 h
av

e 
to

 s
ay

 m
y 

fa
vo

ri
te

 is
 Is

la
n

d
 A

rt
s 

o
n

 D
o

ck
 S

tr
ee

t 
(s

in
ce

 I 
ar

ri
ve

d
 in

 t
im

e 
fo

r 
th

ei
r

u
n

o
f�

ci
al

 a
rt

is
t’

s 
h

ap
py

 h
o

u
r 

an
d

 e
n

jo
ye

d
 a

 g
la

ss
 o

f w
in

e 
w

h
ile

 I 
sh

o
p

p
ed

.) 
T

h
an

ks
 fo

r 
w

el
co

m
in

g 
m

e 
w

it
h

 o
p

en
 a

rm
s 

(a
n

d

b
o

tt
le

s)
, l

ad
ie

s!

O
ne

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 C

ed
ar

 K
ey

 M
us

eu
m

3
. H

is
to

ry
 L

es
so

n
s

C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 h

as
 s

u
ch

 a
 r

ic
h

 h
is

to
ry

 it
 t

ak
es

 t
w

o
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
to

 t
el

l t
h

e 
to

w
n’

s 
st

o
ry

. T
h

e 
C

ed
ar

 K
ey

 H
is

to
ri

ca
l M

u
se

u
m

(h
tt

p
s:

//
ce

d
ar

ke
yh

is
to

ry
.o

rg
/)

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 M

u
se

u
m

 S
ta

te
 P

ar
k 

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.�
o

ri
d

as
ta

te
p

ar
ks

.o
rg

/p
ar

ks
-a

n
d

-

tr
ai

ls
/c

ed
ar

-k
ey

-m
u

se
u

m
-s

ta
te

-p
ar

k)
. T

h
e 

m
u

se
u

m
s 

te
ll 

o
f t

h
e 

lo
ca

lly
 p

le
n

ti
fu

l c
ed

ar
 t

re
es

 u
se

d
 fo

r 
p

en
ci

ls
 u

n
ti

l t
h

ey
 w

er
e

A
ft

er
h

o
u

rs
 a

rt
is

ts
’ m

ee
ti

n
g

d
ec

im
at

ed
 in

 ju
st

 t
h

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
 A

re
a 

re
si

d
en

ts
 t

h
en

 t
u

rn
ed

 t
o

 o
ys

te
ri

n
g,

 b
u

t 
ag

ai
n

, t
h

ey
 d

ep
le

te
d

 t
h

e 
su

p
p

ly
. T

h
e 

H
u

rr
ic

an
e 

o
f

1
8

9
6

 h
it

 w
it

h
 a

 1
0

.5
-f

o
o

t 
st

o
rm

 s
u

rg
e 

th
at

 n
ea

rl
y 

le
ve

le
d

 C
ed

ar
 K

ey
.

E
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f p
al

m
et

to
 fi

be
r b

ru
sh

es
 (t

he
y 

ar
e 

fo
r s

al
e!

)

R
eb

u
ild

in
g,

 b
y 

1
9

1
0

, r
es

id
en

ts
 w

er
e 

u
si

n
g 

p
al

m
 t

re
e 

�
b

er
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

b
ro

o
m

s 
an

d
 b

ru
sh

es
. T

o
d

ay
, t

o
u

ri
sm

 a
n

d
 fa

rm
-r

ai
se

d
 c

la
m

s

ar
e 

th
e 

b
re

ad
w

in
n

er
s.

 S
ea

sh
el

ls
 a

n
d

 n
at

iv
e 

A
m

er
ic

an
 a

rt
if

ac
ts

 t
el

l t
h

e 
st

o
ry

 o
f C

ed
ar

 K
ey

’s
 e

ar
ly

 d
ay

s 
in

 a
 r

es
to

re
d

 1
9

2
0

s

h
o

m
e 

at
 t

h
e 

St
at

e 
P

ar
k.

 I 
ca

n
 p

ro
m

is
e 

yo
u

 w
ill

 e
n

jo
y 

yo
u

r 
h

is
to

ry
 le

ss
o

n
!

-48-



4
. K

ay
ak

in
g

V
is

it
o

rs
 c

an
 r

en
t 

ka
ya

ks
, p

ad
d

le
b

o
ar

d
s,

 a
n

d
 b

o
at

s 
at

 �
ve

 lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

in
 C

ed
ar

 K
ey

. S
p

en
d

 a
 d

ay
 o

n
 t

h
e 

w
at

er
, b

ir
d

in
g,

 o
r 

lo
o

ki
n

g

fo
r 

sh
el

ls
. J

u
st

 p
ad

d
lin

g 
ar

o
u

n
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

b
re

ez
e 

in
 y

o
u

r 
h

ai
r 

is
 g

u
ar

an
te

ed
 t

o
 p

u
t 

a 
sm

ile
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
fa

ce
.

O
sp

re
y 

w
ith

 fi
sh

 d
in

ne
r, 

be
in

g 
di

ve
-b

om
be

d 
by

 a
 b

ra
ve

 d
ra

go
nf

ly

5
. B

ir
d

in
g

B
ir

d
in

g 
is

 a
 p

o
p

u
la

r 
p

as
ti

m
e 

ye
ar

-r
o

u
n

d
, b

u
t 

th
e 

w
in

te
r 

m
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 h
ap

p
en

s 
fr

o
m

 N
ov

em
b

er
 t

o
 M

ar
ch

. T
h

e 
ar

ea
 s

al
t 

m
ar

sh
es

at
tr

ac
t 

b
ir

d
s,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 s

h
o

re
b

ir
d

s 
an

d
 b

ir
d

s 
o

f p
re

y.
 T

h
e 

G
re

at
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

B
ir

d
in

g 
Tr

ai
l (

h
tt

p
s:

//
�

o
ri

d
ab

ir
d

in
gt

ra
il.

co
m

/t
ra

il/
tr

ai
l-

se
ct

io
n

s/
w

es
t-

se
ct

io
n

/)
 p

as
se

s 
th

ro
u

gh
 t

h
e 

Lo
w

er
 S

u
w

an
n

ee
 N

at
io

n
al

 W
ild

lif
e 

R
ef

u
ge

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.fw
s.

go
v/

re
fu

ge
/l

o
w

er
_s

u
w

an
n

ee
/)

.

W
h

ile
 y

o
u

 a
re

 in
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

, b
e 

su
re

 t
o

 m
ak

e 
o

n
e 

m
o

re
 s

to
p

…

-49-



S
he

lls
 th

at
 m

ak
e 

up
 th

e 
sh

el
l m

ou
nd

, m
os

tly
 o

ys
te

rs

6
. S

h
el

l M
o

u
n

d

Fo
u

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ro

ad
 t

o
 t

h
e 

Lo
w

er
 S

u
w

an
n

ee
 N

at
io

n
al

 W
ild

lif
e 

R
ef

u
ge

, t
h

e 
In

d
ia

n
 S

h
el

l M
o

u
n

d

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.v
is

it
�

o
ri

d
a.

co
m

/l
is

ti
n

g/
sh

el
l-

m
o

u
n

d
-a

rc
h

ae
o

lo
gi

ca
l-

si
te

/2
1

8
6

5
/)

 is
 w

o
rt

h
 t

h
e 

ti
m

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
h

al
f-

m
ile

 w
al

k.

T
h

e 
m

o
u

n
d

 w
as

 b
u

ilt
 u

p
 b

y 
n

at
iv

es
 b

et
w

ee
n

 1
,8

0
0

 a
n

d
 4

0
0

 y
ea

rs
 a

go
 a

n
d

 r
ea

ch
es

 2
8

 fe
et

 in
 h

ei
gh

t,
 c

ov
er

in
g 

5
 a

cr
es

! I
 lo

ve

oy
st

er
s 

an
d

 c
la

m
s—

b
u

t 
th

is
 is

 a
 lo

t 
o

f s
h

el
ls

! H
o

w
ev

er
, n

at
iv

e 
in

h
ab

it
an

ts
 w

o
u

ld
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 a

t 
th

e 
m

er
cy

 o
f r

is
in

g 
se

as
 w

it
h

o
u

t

b
u

ild
in

g 
th

e 
m

as
si

ve
 r

id
ge

.

T
h

er
e 

is
 a

 lo
n

ge
r 

h
ik

e,
 a

 m
ile

 m
ea

n
d

er
in

g 
b

es
id

e 
D

en
n

is
 C

re
ek

. P
ro

 T
ip

:  
d

o
u

b
le

 u
p

 o
n

 t
h

e 
b

u
g 

sp
ra

y;
 t

h
ey

 a
re

 p
er

si
st

en
t 

an
d

ap
p

ar
en

tl
y 

st
ar

ve
d

 fo
r 

th
e 

b
lo

o
d

 o
f u

n
su

sp
ec

ti
n

g 
to

u
ri

st
s!

A
ng

le
rs

 tr
y 

th
ei

r l
uc

k 
on

 th
e 

C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 P

ie
r

7
. S

w
im

m
in

g 
an

d
 F

is
h

in
g

O
k,

 o
n

 t
h

e 
su

rf
ac

e,
 t

h
es

e 
d

o
n’

t 
se

em
 t

o
 b

e 
re

la
te

d
. B

u
t 

to
 e

n
jo

y 
sw

im
m

in
g 

o
r 

�
sh

in
g 

yo
u

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 v

is
it

 t
h

e 
o

u
t-

is
la

n
d

s—
an

d
 t

h
at

re
q

u
ir

es
 a

 fe
rr

y.
 T

h
e 

Is
la

n
d

 T
o

u
rs

 (h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.c
ed

ar
ke

yb
o

at
re

n
ta

ls
an

d
is

la
n

d
to

u
rs

.c
o

m
/)

 a
n

d
 T

id
ew

at
er

 T
o

u
rs

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.t
id

ew
at

er
to

u
rs

.c
o

m
/)

 a
re

 a
va

ila
b

le
 fo

r 
tr

ip
s 

to
 t

h
e 

cl
ea

r 
w

at
er

 a
n

d
 s

an
d

y 
b

ea
ch

es
 a

t 
A

ts
en

a 
O

ti
e 

K
ey

 o
r

Se
ah

o
rs

e 
K

ey
. T

o
 �

n
d

 a
 �

sh
in

g 
gu

id
e,

 y
o

u
 o

n
ly

 h
av

e 
to

 lo
o

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
b

ro
ch

u
re

, L
ev

y 
C

ou
nt

y’
s F

ab
ul

ou
s F

is
hi

ng
 G

ui
de

s,
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
 w

ill

h
av

e 
2

8
 fr

o
m

 w
h

ic
h

 t
o

 c
h

o
o

se
! Y

o
u

 c
an

 a
ls

o
 g

et
 t

h
e 

m
o

st
 c

u
rr

en
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
t 

Le
vy

 C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 w
eb

si
te

(h
tt

p
s:

//
vi

si
tn

at
u

re
co

as
t.

co
m

/)
. G

u
lf

 o
r 

ri
ve

r 
�

sh
in

g—
th

ey
’v

e 
go

t 
yo

u
 c

ov
er

ed
!

O
f c

o
u

rs
e,

 in
 t

h
e 

af
te

rn
o

o
n

 t
h

er
e 

ar
e 

an
gl

er
s 

tr
yi

n
g 

th
ei

r 
lu

ck
 o

n
 t

h
e 

�
sh

in
g 

p
ie

r. 
It

 is
 fu

n
 t

o
 w

at
ch

, e
ve

n
 if

 y
o

u
 d

o
n’

t 
h

av
e 

a 
ro

d
.

S
ea

ho
rs

e 
K

ey
 L

ig
ht

8
. S

ea
h

o
rs

e 
K

ey
 L

ig
h

t

T
h

e 
is

la
n

d
’s

 s
h

ap
e 

is
 s

ai
d

 t
o

 r
es

em
b

le
 a

 s
ea

h
o

rs
e,

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

lig
h

th
o

u
se

 (h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.li
gh

th
o

u
se

fr
ie

n
d

s.
co

m
/l

ig
h

t.
as

p
?

ID
=

5
9

5
) w

as
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
ed

 in
 1

8
5

4
. T

h
e 

h
o

u
se

 is
 a

 7
0

-f
o

o
t 

sq
u

ar
e 

d
w

el
lin

g,
 w

it
h

 a
 s

p
ir

al
 s

ta
ir

ca
se

 t
o

 t
h

e 
la

n
te

rn
 r

o
o

m
. O

n
 t

o
p

 o
f

“T
h

e 
M

o
u

n
d

” 
(5

2
 fe

et
 a

b
ov

e 
se

a 
le

ve
l)

, t
h

e 
lig

h
t 

is
 v

is
ib

le
 fo

r 
1

5
 m

ile
s.

 T
h

is
 li

gh
t 

is
 o

n
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
es

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

n
 F

lo
ri

d
a’

s 
w

es
t 

co
as

t.

-50-



W
ild

 B
u

tt
er

�
y

St
ai

rw
ay

 t
o

 L
an

te
rn

ro
o

m

To
ny

’s
 fa

m
ou

s 
C

la
m

 C
ho

w
de

r

9
. T

h
e 

Is
la

n
d

 H
o

te
l

A
n

 ic
o

n
 fr

o
m

 1
8

5
9

, t
h

e 
h

o
te

l h
as

 b
ee

n
 h

o
m

e 
to

 c
el

eb
ri

ti
es

 a
n

d
 e

ve
n

 a
 p

re
si

d
en

t.
 L

o
ca

l w
ri

te
r 

P
ea

rl
 B

u
ck

, J
o

h
n

 D
. M

ac
D

o
n

al
d

,

an
d

 P
re

si
d

en
t 

G
ro

ve
r 

C
le

ve
la

n
d

 h
av

e 
al

l s
ta

ye
d

 in
 T

h
e 

Is
la

n
d

 H
o

te
l (

h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.is
la

n
d

h
o

te
l-

ce
d

ar
ke

y.
co

m
/)

, a
s 

h
as

 J
im

m
y

B
u

ff
et

t.
 B

u
ff

et
t 

ev
en

 h
el

d
 im

p
ro

m
p

tu
 s

er
en

ad
es

 fr
o

m
 h

is
 b

al
co

ny
. T

h
e 

b
u

ild
in

g 
n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 s

u
rv

iv
ed

 t
h

e 
C

iv
il 

W
ar

 b
u

t 
h

u
rr

ic
an

es

an
d

 e
ve

n
 a

tt
em

p
te

d
 a

rs
o

n
 (b

y 
a 

d
es

p
er

at
e 

b
an

kr
u

p
t 

o
w

n
er

!)
 T

h
e 

h
o

te
l h

as
 p

er
io

d
-d

ec
o

ra
te

d
 r

o
o

m
s 

th
at

 le
t 

yo
u

 s
te

p
 b

ac
k 

in

ti
m

e,
 b

u
t 

w
it

h
 o

n
ly

 t
en

 r
o

o
m

s,
 t

h
ey

 �
ll 

u
p

 fa
st

. T
h

ey
 a

d
ve

rt
is

e,
 “

It
’s

 t
h

e 
p

er
fe

ct
 lo

ca
ti

o
n

 fo
r 

yo
u

r 
n

ex
t 

F
lo

ri
d

a 
va

ca
ti

o
n

.” 
T

h
ey

ju
st

 m
ay

 b
e 

ri
gh

t!

Yo
u

 w
o

n’
t 

�
n

d
 c

h
ai

n
 h

o
te

ls
 h

er
e.

 W
h

at
 y

o
u

 w
ill

 �
n

d
 in

 C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 a

re
 lo

ca
lly

 o
w

n
ed

 p
la

ce
s 

an
d

 p
le

n
ty

 o
f i

n
d

iv
id

u
al

 h
o

u
se

s.
 T

h
e

H
ar

b
o

u
r 

M
as

te
r 

Su
it

es
 (h

tt
p

s:
//

w
w

w
.c

ed
ar

ke
yh

ar
b

o
u

rm
as

te
r.c

o
m

/)
 a

re
 t

h
e 

so
u

th
er

n
m

o
st

 lo
ca

le
 in

 C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 –

 r
ig

h
t 

ov
er

 t
h

e

G
u

lf
 o

f M
ex

ic
o

. T
h

ey
 a

ls
o

 h
av

e 
si

st
er

 p
ro

p
er

ti
es

, i
m

p
ro

vi
n

g 
yo

u
r 

ch
an

ce
 o

f g
et

ti
n

g 
a 

ro
o

m
. I

 s
ta

ye
d

 in
 a

n
 u

p
p

er
-l

ev
el

 h
o

u
se

,

w
it

h
 a

 p
o

rc
h

 id
ea

l f
o

r 
a 

q
u

ie
t 

ev
en

in
g 

an
d

 a
 g

la
ss

 o
f F

lo
ri

d
a’

s 
B

lu
eb

er
ry

 W
in

e.

1
0

. A
w

ar
d

-w
in

n
in

g 
C

h
o

w
d

er

F
am

o
u

s 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l c

la
m

s,
 C

ed
ar

 K
ey

 is
 h

o
m

e 
to

 T
o

ny
’s

 S
ea

fo
o

d

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.t
o

ny
sc

h
o

w
d

er
.c

o
m

/)
 a

n
d

 it
s 

th
re

e-
ti

m
e 

W
o

rl
d

 C
h

am
p

io
n

 C
la

m
 C

h
o

w
d

er
. T

o
ny

’s

se
rv

es
 C

la
m

 C
h

o
w

d
er

, L
o

b
st

er
 B

is
q

u
e,

 a
n

d
 m

an
y 

o
th

er
 t

re
at

s 
(t

h
in

k 
F

lo
ri

d
a 

K
ey

 L
im

es
!)

 fo
r

yo
u

r 
ta

st
eb

u
d

s 
at

 lu
n

ch
 a

n
d

 d
in

n
er

. I
 c

o
u

ld
n’

t 
d

ec
id

e,
 s

o
 I 

h
ad

 b
o

th
 t

h
e 

C
la

m
 a

n
d

 L
o

b
st

er
—

o
n

ly
 a

 c
up

 o
f e

ac
h

…
 d

o
n’

t 
ju

d
ge

!

1
1

. D
o

ck
si

d
e 

D
in

in
g

E
at

 d
in

n
er

 a
n

d
 e

n
jo

y 
G

u
lf

 v
ie

w
s 

at
 D

u
n

ca
n’

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

G
u

lf

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.d
u

n
ca

n
so

tg
.c

o
m

/)
 o

r 

 a
n

d
 G

ri
ll.

 T
h

e 
fr

ie
n

d
ly

 fo
lk

s 
h

er
e 

ar
e 

ev
er

yw
h

er
e.

W
h

en
 s

h
e 

sa
w

 m
e 

d
ro

o
lin

g 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
sm

el
l o

f h
er

 p
iz

za
, a

 g
ra

ci
o

u
s 

lo
ca

l p
as

se
d

 m
e 

a 
sl

ic
e 

o
f

h
er

 “
Ji

m
m

y 
Fr

o
gs

 T
o

ad
al

ly
 A

w
es

o
m

e”
 S

h
ri

m
p

 P
ie

. O
h

, m
y 

G
O

O
D

N
E

SS
! I

t 
so

o
o

o
 li

ve
s 

u
p

 t
o

th
e 

n
am

e!
 T

ru
st

 m
e,

 ju
st

 o
rd

er
 o

n
e!

 It
 w

as
 s

o
 g

o
o

d
 I 

re
tu

rn
ed

 t
h

e 
n

ex
t 

n
ig

h
t 

fo
r 

a 
w

h
o

le
 p

ie
, b

u
t 

th
e 

cl
am

s 
ju

st
 c

al
le

d
 m

y 
n

am
e…

I’m
 a

 w
ea

k 
fo

o
d

 lo
ve

r, 
w

h
at

 c
an

 I 
te

ll 
yo

u
! I

 d
ev

o
u

re
d

 t
h

at
 b

o
w

l w
it

h
 a

 d
el

ic
io

u
s 

P
in

o
t 

w
h

ile
 I 

en
jo

ye
d

 t
h

e 
su

n
 s

et
ti

n
g 

ov
er

 t
h

e

d
o

ck
.

W
ild

 B
u

tt
er

�
y

St
ea

m
er

s 
C

la
m

 B
ar

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.s
te

am
er

sc
ed

ar
ke

y.
co

m
/)

-51-



M
y 

d
in

n
er

 a
t 

St
ea

m
er

s 
co

n
si

st
ed

 o
f a

 b
ig

 b
o

w
l o

f c
la

m
s 

st
ea

m
ed

 in
 w

h
it

e 
w

in
e 

an
d

 b
u

tt
er

. M
o

re
 y

u
m

m
in

es
s!

 I 
le

ft
 t

h
er

e 
ea

rl
y

en
o

u
gh

 t
o

 d
ri

ve
 t

o
 t

h
e 

is
la

n
d

’s
 h

ig
h

 p
o

in
t 

fo
r 

su
n

se
t 

(a
n

o
th

er
 h

o
t 

ti
p

 fr
o

m
 a

 lo
ca

l!
) I

 h
av

e 
to

 s
ay

; i
t 

d
id

 n
o

t 
d

is
ap

p
o

in
t!

1
2

. H
ig

h
 S

te
p

p
in

g 
E

q
u

in
e

I t
h

in
k 

ev
er

y 
lit

tl
e 

gi
rl

 lo
ve

s 
h

o
rs

es
; I

 s
u

re
 d

id
 (d

o)
! L

ev
y 

C
o

u
n

ty
 is

 a
 h

o
rs

e-
h

av
en

: p
er

fe
ct

 la
n

d
sc

ap
e,

 id
ea

l w
ea

th
er

, a
n

d
 b

ar
n

s

al
o

n
gs

id
e 

ca
m

p
er

 p
ar

ki
n

g.
 B

la
ck

 P
ro

n
g 

E
q

u
es

tr
ia

n
 V

ill
ag

e 
in

 B
ro

n
so

n
 h

o
st

s 
a 

se
ri

es
 o

f c
ar

ri
ag

e 
d

ri
vi

n
g 

co
m

p
et

it
io

n
s 

ra
n

ke
d

 b
y

th
e 

A
m

er
ic

an
 D

ri
vi

n
g 

So
ci

et
y.

 D
ri

vi
n

g 
E

ve
n

ts
 b

eg
in

 N
ov

em
b

er
 1

7
, a

n
d

 t
h

e 
�

n
al

 c
o

m
p

et
it

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e 

h
el

d
 o

n
 M

ar
ch

 3
0

, 2
0

2
2

.

T
h

e 
ev

en
ts

 w
ill

 in
cl

u
d

e 
a 

d
re

ss
ag

e 
fe

st
iv

al
 in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y.
 S

p
ec

ta
to

rs
 a

re
 w

el
co

m
e,

 s
o

 c
h

ec
k 

th
e 

B
la

ck
 P

ro
n

g

(h
tt

p
s:

//
b

la
ck

p
ro

n
g.

co
m

/)
 w

eb
si

te
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 if

 y
o

u
 a

re
 in

 t
h

e 
ar

ea
.

B
oa

rd
w

al
k 

al
on

g 
M

an
at

ee
 S

pr
in

gs

A
n

o
th

er
 c

la
im

 t
o

 fa
m

e 
fo

r 
W

ill
is

to
n

 w
as

 b
ei

n
g 

Fo
o

lis
h

 P
le

as
u

re
’s

 h
o

m
e 

(t
h

e 
1

0
1

st
 K

en
tu

ck
y 

D
er

by
 w

in
n

er
!)

1
3

. M
an

at
ee

 S
p

ri
n

gs
 S

ta
te

 P
ar

k

O
n

e 
o

f F
lo

ri
d

a’
s 

m
o

st
 p

ic
tu

re
sq

u
e 

p
la

ce
s 

h
as

 t
o

 b
e 

M
an

at
ee

 S
p

ri
n

gs

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.�
o

ri
d

as
ta

te
p

ar
ks

.o
rg

/p
ar

ks
-a

n
d

-t
ra

ils
/m

an
at

ee
-s

p
ri

n
gs

-s
ta

te
-p

ar
k)

. F
lo

ri
d

a

h
as

 o
ve

r 
1

0
0

 s
ta

te
 p

ar
ks

, b
u

t 
ev

er
yo

n
e 

sa
ys

 t
h

is
 is

 o
n

e 
o

f t
h

e 
b

es
t!

 A
 b

ea
u

ti
fu

l c
yp

re
ss

-l
in

ed

sp
ri

n
g 

w
it

h
 b

o
ar

d
w

al
ks

 a
n

d
 o

b
se

rv
at

io
n

 d
ec

ks
, M

an
at

ee
 S

p
ri

n
gs

 is
 h

id
d

en
 a

m
o

n
g 

th
e 

tr
ee

s.

B
u

t 
th

e 
se

cr
et

 is
 o

u
t,

 a
n

d
 s

u
m

m
er

 d
ay

s 
an

d
 w

ee
ke

n
d

s 
ar

e 
b

u
sy

. B
u

t 
if

 y
o

u
 v

is
it

 in
 t

h
e 

o
ff

-

se
as

o
n

, y
o

u
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

th
e 

p
la

ce
 t

o
 y

o
u

rs
el

f. 
T

h
er

e 
is

 e
ve

n
 a

 g
az

eb
o

 w
ay

 d
o

w
n

 o
n

 t
h

e

Su
w

an
n

ee
 R

iv
er

. I
f w

an
d

er
in

g 
al

o
n

g 
th

e 
w

at
er

’s
 e

d
ge

 is
n’

t 
ex

ci
ti

n
g 

en
o

u
gh

 fo
r 

yo
u

, r
en

t 
a 

b
ik

e,

ka
ya

k,
 o

r 
ca

n
o

e.
 T

h
e 

p
ar

k 
w

ill
 e

ve
n

 a
rr

an
ge

 fo
r 

a 
re

n
te

d
 p

o
n

to
o

n
.

M
an

at
ee

 S
p

ri
n

gs
 h

as
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 e

ig
h

t 
m

ile
s 

o
f t

ra
ils

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

n
ec

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

3
2

-m
ile

 N
at

u
re

C
o

as
t 

St
at

e 
Tr

ai
l. 

Yo
u

 m
ay

 w
an

t 
to

 b
ri

n
g 

yo
u

r 
b

ic
yc

le
!

D
r. 

W
ill

is
’ 1

91
2 

ho
m

e 
th

at
 is

 n
ow

 th
e 

Iv
y 

H
ou

se
 re

st
au

ra
nt

1
4

. I
vy

 H
o

u
se

T
h

o
se

 e
n

ti
ci

n
g 

ar
o

m
as

 e
m

an
at

in
g 

fr
o

m
 a

 h
is

to
ri

c 
h

o
m

e 
in

 t
h

e 
h

ea
rt

 o
f W

ill
is

to
n

 a
re

 c
o

m
in

g 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
fa

m
o

u
s 

Iv
y 

H
o

u
se

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.iv
yh

o
u

se
�

.c
o

m
/w

ill
is

to
n

-m
en

u
) r

es
ta

u
ra

n
t.

 F
ro

m
 fr

ie
d

 g
re

en
 t

o
m

at
o

es
 t

o
 s

o
u

th
er

n
 fr

ie
d

 c
o

d
, y

o
u

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
le

av
e

h
u

n
gr

y.
 F

am
o

u
s 

am
o

n
g 

lo
ca

ls
 fo

r 
th

ei
r 

fr
ie

d
 c

h
ic

ke
n

, y
o

u
 w

ill
 b

e 
h

ar
d

-p
re

ss
ed

 t
o

 p
ic

k 
so

m
et

h
in

g 
el

se
 fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
m

en
u

. T
h

e 
Iv

y

H
o

u
se

 h
as

 n
u

m
er

o
u

s 
aw

ar
d

s 
an

d
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
o

n
e 

o
f t

h
e 

“T
o

p
 5

0
0

 P
la

ce
s 

to
 E

at
 in

 t
h

e 
St

at
e 

o
f F

lo
ri

d
a”

 e
ig

h
t 

ye
ar

s 
in

 a

ro
w

.

-52-



D
es

se
rt

 s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e 

sk
ip

p
ed

—
yo

u
 c

an
 d

ie
t 

to
m

o
rr

o
w

! B
u

tt
er

m
ilk

 W
al

n
u

t 
P

ie
…

ju
st

 s
ay

in
’!

! A
n

d
 a

ft
er

 y
o

u
 e

at
, t

h
e 

b
o

u
ti

q
u

e

u
p

st
ai

rs
 m

ay
 h

o
ld

 ju
st

 t
h

e 
tr

ea
su

re
 y

o
u

 n
ee

d
 fo

r 
yo

u
r 

va
ca

ti
o

n
 s

o
u

ve
n

ir
. O

w
n

er
 M

ar
jo

ri
e 

sa
ys

 o
f h

er
se

lf
 in

 h
er

co
o

kb
o

o
k,

 G
ra

ce
fu

lly
 S

ou
th

er
n,

 a
s 

a 
gi

rl
, s

h
e 

“l
ov

ed
 t

o
 w

ea
r 

p
re

tt
y 

cl
o

th
es

 e
ve

ry
 d

ay
. I

 s
ti

ll 
d

o
!”

 B
ro

w
si

n
g 

h
er

 s
el

ec
ti

o
n

s 
in

 t
h

e

b
o

u
ti

q
u

e 
co

n
�

rm
s 

th
at

 s
h

e 
h

as
n’

t 
ch

an
ge

d
 a

 b
it

! A
n

d
 s

p
ea

ki
n

g 
o

f p
re

tt
y 

cl
o

th
es

, w
ai

t 
ti

ll 
yo

u
 s

ee
 t

h
e 

La
d

ie
s’

 r
o

o
m

 d
o

o
r!

Iv
y 

H
o

u
se

 is
 a

 la
b

o
r 

o
f l

ov
e.

 M
ar

jo
ri

e 
H

al
e 

w
as

 b
o

rn
 in

 W
ill

is
to

n
, d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

D
r. 

W
ill

is
 (s

o
n

 o
f t

h
e 

to
w

n’
s 

n
am

es
ak

e.
) T

h
at

sa
m

e 
d

o
ct

o
r 

b
u

ilt
 t

h
e 

Iv
y 

H
o

u
se

 in
 1

9
1

2
. I

 g
u

es
s 

yo
u

 c
o

u
ld

 s
ay

 t
h

at
 fr

ie
d

 c
h

ic
ke

n
 is

 h
er

ed
it

ar
y.

 A
s 

a 
te

en
, s

h
e 

w
o

rk
ed

 fo
r 

h
er

si
st

er
 N

et
ti

e’
s 

re
st

au
ra

n
t,

 T
he

 C
hi

ck
 In

n 
(d

re
ss

 m
o

n
ey

, y
o

u
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

.)

O
liv

ia
 a

nd
 h

us
ba

nd
 T

ay
lo

r, 
ce

le
br

at
in

g 
hi

s 
bi

rth
da

y 
at

 D
ev

il’s
 D

en

1
5

. D
ev

il’
s 

D
en

D
es

p
it

e 
th

e 
n

am
e,

 t
h

is
 is

 a
 p

re
tt

y 
h

ea
ve

n
ly

 p
la

ce
. Y

o
u

 d
ri

ve
 d

o
w

n
 a

 lo
n

g,
 m

o
ss

-d
ra

p
ed

 la
n

e 
to

 D
ev

il’
s 

D
en

(h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.d

ev
ils

d
en

.c
o

m
/)

, a
 g

eo
lo

gi
ca

l f
ea

tu
re

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

s 
a 

ka
rs

t 
ca

ve
rn

. T
h

is
 le

ge
n

d
ar

y 
p

la
ce

 (b
et

w
ee

n
 1

0
,0

0
0

 a
n

d
 7

5
,0

0
0

ye
ar

s 
o

ld
) o

ff
er

s 
sc

u
b

a 
d

iv
er

s 
an

d
 s

n
o

rk
el

er
s 

th
e 

ch
an

ce
 t

o
 e

xp
lo

re
 a

 c
ir

cl
e 

o
f c

ry
st

al
-c

le
ar

 w
at

er
. I

f y
o

u
 a

re
n’

t 
a 

sw
im

m
er

, y
o

u

ca
n

 s
ti

ll 
en

jo
y 

th
e 

vi
ew

 fr
o

m
 a

n
 o

b
se

rv
at

io
n

 d
ec

k 
th

ro
u

gh
 a

n
 o

p
en

in
g 

in
 t

h
e 

ca
ve

rn
’s

 c
ei

lin
g.

 T
h

ey
 h

av
e 

ca
b

in
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
a

ca
m

p
gr

o
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 R

V
 p

ar
k.

-53-



B
ea

ut
ifu

l f
lo

w
er

s 
su

rr
ou

nd
 th

e 
w

at
er

s 
of

 th
is

 q
ua

rr
y 

tu
rn

ed
 b

ot
an

ic
al

 g
ar

de
n

1
6

. C
ed

ar
 L

ak
es

 W
o

o
d

s 
&

 G
ar

d
en

s

I k
n

o
w

, y
o

u
’r

e 
th

in
ki

n
g…

se
ri

o
u

sl
y,

 t
h

er
e’

s 
m

or
e?

! L
ev

y 
C

o
u

n
ty

 is
 o

n
ly

 1
,4

1
3

 s
q

u
ar

e 
m

ile
s,

 a
n

d
 2

9
5

 o
f t

h
o

se
 a

re
 w

at
er

! C
o

u
ld

 it

p
o

ss
ib

ly
 o

ff
er

 m
o

re
? 

T
h

e 
an

sw
er

, m
y 

fr
ie

n
d

, i
s,

 “
Ye

s!
” 

R
ig

h
t 

n
ex

t 
d

o
o

r 
to

 D
ev

il’
s 

D
en

 is
 a

 c
en

tu
ry

-o
ld

 q
u

ar
ry

 t
h

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n

re
im

ag
in

ed
 a

s 
a 

b
o

ta
n

ic
al

 g
ar

d
en

. A
 tr

ue
 h

id
d

en
 g

em
 a

cc
es

se
d

 v
ia

 a
 lo

n
g 

d
ir

t 
ro

ad
 �

lle
d

 w
it

h
 b

u
m

p
s 

an
d

 h
ill

s,
 C

ed
ar

 L
ak

es
 h

o
ld

s

5
0

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
ga

rd
en

s.
 C

ed
ar

 L
ak

es
 W

o
o

d
s 

&
 G

ar
d

en
s 

(h
tt

p
s:

//
ce

d
ar

la
ke

sw
o

o
d

sa
n

d
ga

rd
en

.c
o

m
/)

 is
 t

h
e 

vi
si

o
n

 o
f o

n
e 

m
an

, D
r.

R
ay

m
o

n
d

 W
eb

b
er

 (w
el

l, 
o

k,
 h

is
 v

is
io

n
 w

as
 a

 p
ri

va
te

 �
sh

in
g 

h
o

le
, b

u
t 

th
at

’s
 a

n
o

th
er

 s
to

ry
!)

Yo
u

 w
ill

 w
is

h
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
 h

ad
 m

o
re

 t
im

e 
h

er
e,

 n
o

 m
at

te
r 

h
o

w
 m

u
ch

 t
im

e 
yo

u
 h

av
e!

 P
o

n
d

s,
 w

at
er

fa
lls

, b
lo

ss
o

m
s,

 r
oy

al
 s

w
an

s,
 li

ly

p
ad

s,
 a

n
d

 fr
u

it
 t

re
es

 w
ill

 c
ap

ti
va

te
; b

en
ch

es
 w

ill
 b

ea
co

n
; f

ru
it

 t
re

es
 w

ill
 t

em
p

t;
 b

ir
d

s 
w

ill
 c

al
l. 

P
u

t 
C

ed
ar

 L
ak

es
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
to

-d
o

 li
st

,

an
d

 t
el

l L
o

ri
 I 

se
n

t 
yo

u
! *

sm
ile

* 
Yo

u
 c

an
 r

ea
d

 e
ve

n
 m

o
re

 a
b

o
u

t 
C

ed
ar

 L
ak

es
 in

 m
y 

re
ce

n
t 

ar
ti

cl
e 

in
 G

ar
d

en
 D

es
ti

n
at

io
n

s

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.g
ar

d
en

d
es

ti
n

at
io

n
s.

co
m

/v
is

it
in

g-
ce

d
ar

-l
ak

es
-w

o
o

d
s-

an
d

-g
ar

d
en

s/
).

St
u

d
en

t 
p

re
p

ar
in

g 
to

 d
es

ce
n

d
T

h
e 

B
lu

e 
G

ro
tt

o
, r

e�
ec

ti
n

g 
th

e 
b

lu
e 

sk
y

1
7

. B
lu

e 
G

ro
tt

o

D
o

w
n

 a
 lo

n
g 

ro
ad

, t
h

e 
B

lu
e 

G
ro

tt
o

 (h
tt

p
s:

//
d

iv
eb

lu
eg

ro
tt

o
.c

o
m

/)
 s

it
s 

in
 s

ec
lu

d
ed

 p
ea

ce
. I

t 
is

n’
t 

to
o

 h
id

d
en

 s
in

ce
 J

ac
q

u
es

C
o

u
st

ea
u

 v
is

it
ed

 a
n

d
 s

ai
d

 t
h

e 
8

0
-f

o
o

t-
w

id
e 

an
d

 1
0

0
-f

o
o

t-
d

ee
p

 s
p

ri
n

g 
h

ad
 “

vi
si

b
ili

ty
 fo

re
ve

r.”
 A

n
 e

xp
an

si
ve

 d
ec

k 
is

 p
er

fe
ct

 fo
r

o
b

se
rv

in
g 

d
iv

in
g 

le
ss

o
n

s 
(e

ve
n

 if
 y

o
u

 a
re

n’
t 

ta
ki

n
g 

o
n

e.
) T

h
e 

G
ro

tt
o

 h
as

 g
u

es
t 

ca
b

in
s 

an
d

 a
 d

iv
e 

sh
o

p
. A

n
d

 t
h

e 
in

st
ru

ct
o

r 
I

w
at

ch
ed

 w
as

 t
er

ri
�

c!
 (I

’m
 a

 r
et

ir
ed

 t
ea

ch
er

—
I k

no
w

 a
m

az
in

g!
) S

h
e 

w
as

 e
ve

n
 h

el
p

fu
l t

o
 t

h
is

 n
o

se
y 

vi
si

to
r!

 I 
w

ill
 b

e 
b

ac
k–

I

h
av

en
’t

 a
 c

lu
e 

ab
o

u
t 

sn
o

rk
el

in
g,

 a
n

d
 S

u
sa

n
 s

ay
s 

sh
e 

ca
n

 t
ea

ch
 e

ve
n

 m
e!

!

Th
e 

lo
g 

ca
bi

n 
bu

ilt
 b

y 
th

e 
qu

ilt
in

g 
gr

ou
p

1
8

. L
ev

y 
C

o
u

n
ty

 Q
u

ilt
 M

u
se

u
m

Su
sa

n
 e

n
co

u
ra

ge
s 

a 
st

u
d

en
t 

to
 t

ak
e 

th
e 

p
lu

n
ge

-54-



T
h

e 
Le

vy
 C

o
u

n
ty

 Q
u

ilt
 M

u
se

u
m

 (h
tt

p
s:

//
le

vy
co

u
n

ty
q

u
ilt

m
u

se
u

m
.o

rg
/)

 in
 C

h
ie

�
an

d
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g 
b

ac
k 

m
em

o
ri

es
 o

f y
o

u
r

gr
an

d
m

o
th

er
’s

 h
o

u
se

. I
 s

p
o

tt
ed

 s
ev

er
al

 id
en

ti
ca

l t
o

 m
y 

G
ra

n
d

m
a 

C
la

rk
’s

 h
an

d
iw

o
rk

. T
h

e 
h

an
d

-p
ie

ce
d

 q
u

ilt
s 

ar
e 

d
is

p
la

ye
d

th
ro

u
gh

o
u

t 
th

e 
ca

b
in

 (y
es

, t
h

e 
m

u
se

u
m

 is
 in

 a
 lo

ve
ly

 lo
g 

ca
b

in
.) 

T
h

e 
st

o
re

 s
el

ls
 fa

b
ri

c 
fo

r 
q

u
ilt

in
g 

h
o

b
by

is
ts

. A
n

d
 it

 h
as

 s
ev

er
al

h
is

to
ri

ca
l d

is
p

la
ys

; I
 e

n
jo

ye
d

 s
p

o
tt

in
g 

a 
ch

ild
’s

 s
ew

in
g 

m
ac

h
in

e 
(I

 s
ti

ll 
h

av
e 

m
in

e!
)

A
m

o
n

g 
th

e 
d

is
p

la
ye

d
 q

u
ilt

s 
ar

e 
aw

ar
d

-w
in

n
in

g 
ex

am
p

le
s 

cr
ea

te
d

 b
y 

Si
eg

lin
d

e 
Sc

h
o

en
 S

m
it

h
. H

er
 �

rs
t 

q
u

ilt
, “

M
o

th
er

 E
ar

th
 a

n
d

H
er

 C
h

ild
re

n
,” 

w
as

 m
ad

e 
af

te
r 

h
er

 s
o

n’
s 

d
ea

th
. S

h
e 

sp
en

t 
a 

ye
ar

 a
n

d
 a

 d
ay

 p
ie

ci
n

g,
 e

m
b

ro
id

er
in

g,
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
liq

u
éi

n
g 

th
is

 q
u

ilt
. T

h
is

go
rg

eo
u

s 
cr

ea
ti

o
n

 w
o

n
 B

es
t 

in
 S

h
o

w
 a

t 
th

e 
In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 Q
u

ilt
 S

h
o

w
 in

 H
o

u
st

o
n

, T
ex

as
. F

ir
st

 q
u

ilt
; �

rs
t 

co
n

te
st

; �
rs

t 
p

ri
ze

!

A
d

ve
n

t 
Q

u
ilt

, D
ay

 2
3

D
ay

 2
3

 o
p

en
s 

to
 a

 s
ta

ck
 o

f g
if

ts

Le
ft

: O
ak

 L
ea

f Q
u

ilt
; C

en
te

r:
 D

re
sd

en
 P

la
te

 Q
u

ilt
, R

ig
h

t:
 B

o
w

 T
ie

 Q
u

ilt
; f

ar
 R

ig
h

t:
 F

an
 Q

u
ilt

Tu
rtl

e 
ch

ec
ki

ng
 m

e 
ou

t

A
ft

er
 h

er
 p

as
si

n
g,

 h
er

 h
u

sb
an

d
 s

o
u

gh
t 

a 
p

la
ce

 t
o

 d
is

p
la

y 
h

er
 q

u
ilt

s,
 n

o
t 

st
o

re
 t

h
em

 a
w

ay
 in

 t
ru

n
ks

. I
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 lo
ve

 t
h

e 
A

d
ve

n
t

Q
u

ilt
, w

it
h

 s
u

rp
ri

se
s 

ev
er

yw
h

er
e!

I h
av

e 
d

is
co

ve
re

d
 t

h
at

 t
h

er
e 

is
 a

 F
lo

ri
d

a 
Q

u
ilt

 T
ra

il 
th

at
 le

ad
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 G
ilc

h
ri

st
 C

o
u

n
ty

. I
’ll

 b
e 

cl
u

in
g 

yo
u

 in
 o

n
 t

h
at

 a
d

ve
n

tu
re

so
o

n
!

1
9

. U
F

 B
io

lo
gi

ca
l S

ta
ti

o
n

C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 is

 t
h

e 
h

o
m

e 
o

f t
h

e 
N

at
u

re
 C

o
as

t 
B

io
lo

gi
ca

l S
ta

ti
o

n

(h
tt

p
s:

//
n

cb
s.

if
as

.u
�

.e
d

u
/)

. P
ar

t 
o

f t
h

e 
U

n
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f F
lo

ri
d

a,
 t

h
is

 t
h

re
e-

st
o

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g

h
as

 a
 w

et
 la

b
 a

n
d

 a
q

u
ar

iu
m

 o
n

 t
h

e 
�

rs
t 

�
o

o
r 

an
d

 p
le

n
ty

 o
f o

f�
ce

 s
p

ac
e 

to
 r

es
ea

rc
h

h
ar

d
-s

h
el

l c
la

m
 a

q
u

ac
u

lt
u

re
. I

f y
o

u
 s

to
p

 b
y,

 m
ay

b
e 

M
ik

e 
w

ill
 in

tr
o

d
u

ce
 y

o
u

 t
o

 t
h

e

tu
rt

le
s!

-55-



M
os

t o
f t

he
 b

ar
’s

 s
ea

tin
g 

is
 o

ut
si

de
; i

f y
ou

 g
o 

du
rin

g 
ba

d 
w

ea
th

er
 th

ey
 m

ay
 b

e 
cl

os
ed

2
0

. T
ik

i B
ar

I d
is

co
ve

re
d

 t
h

e 
p

er
fe

ct
 s

p
o

t 
to

 a
w

ai
t 

th
e 

se
tt

in
g 

su
n

, t
h

e 
lo

ca
l T

ik
i B

ar

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.lo
w

ke
yh

id
ea

w
ay

.in
fo

/t
ik

i-
b

ar
). 

D
ec

o
ra

te
d

 w
it

h
 s

h
el

ls
 a

n
d

 s
ea

 g
la

ss
 a

n
d

 e
n

cl
o

se
d

 b
y 

a

w
al

l m
ad

e 
o

f r
ec

yc
le

d
 b

o
tt

le
s,

 t
h

is
 p

la
ce

 h
as

 a
 li

st
 o

f d
ri

n
ks

 p
ai

n
te

d
 o

n
 a

n
 o

ld
 s

u
rf

b
o

ar
d

! N
at

u
ra

lly
, I

h
o

m
ed

 in
 o

n
 t

h
e 

B
u

tt
er

 P
ec

an
 C

o
la

d
a.

 I’
m

 s
ti

ll 
n

o
t 

su
re

 w
h

et
h

er
 t

o
 c

al
l i

t 
a 

d
ri

n
k 

o
r 

m
y 

d
es

se
rt

!

B
ut

te
r P

ec
an

 C
ol

ad
a

Jo
 C

la
rk

 te
st

in
g 

th
e 

w
at

er
s

W
h

at
ev

er
 y

o
u

 c
al

l i
t,

 I’
m

 lo
o

ki
n

g 
fo

rw
ar

d
 t

o
 a

n
o

th
er

 o
n

e!

If
 y

o
u

 n
ee

d
 p

ro
o

f o
f t

h
e 

sm
al

l-
to

w
n

 fe
el

 o
f C

ed
ar

 K
ey

, h
er

e 
ya

 g
o

—
I’v

e 
b

ee
n

h
er

e 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 t
w

o
 d

ay
s,

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 I 
w

al
ke

d
 in

to
 t

h
is

 b
ar

, i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 a

n
 a

rt
is

ti
c 

“p
u

ff
er

�
sh

” 
by

 M
ar

e.
 I 

as
ke

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e 

�
sh

, o
n

ly
 t

o
 b

e

to
ld

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

b
ar

 o
w

n
er

 is
 M

ar
e’

s 
so

n
!!

  Y
ep

, i
t’

s 
a 

sm
al

l w
o

rl
d

.

A
rr

iv
in

g 
at

 B
lu

e 
S

pr
in

gs
 e

ar
ly

 to
 a

vo
id

 th
e 

cr
ow

d

2
1

. B
ro

n
so

n
 B

lu
e 

Sp
ri

n
gs

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
k

T
h

e 
B

lu
e 

Sp
ri

n
g 

C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
k 

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.n
at

u
ra

ln
o

rt
h

�
o

ri
d

a.
co

m
/t

h
in

gs
-t

o
-d

o
/b

ro
n

so
n

-b
lu

e-

sp
ri

n
gs

/)
 in

 B
ro

n
so

n
 is

 o
p

en
 fr

o
m

 M
ar

ch
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

. I
t 

o
ff

er
s 

sw
im

m
in

g,
 a

 d
iv

in
g

p
la

tf
o

rm
, a

n
d

 a
n

 o
b

se
rv

at
io

n
 d

ec
k.

 T
h

e 
cl

ea
r 

sp
ri

n
g 

w
at

er
 a

llo
w

s 
vi

si
to

rs
 t

o
 a

ct
u

al
ly

 s
ee

 t
h

e

“b
o

ili
n

g”
 s

p
o

t,
 w

h
er

e 
th

e 
sp

ri
n

g 
w

at
er

 is
 e

n
te

ri
n

g 
th

e 
sw

im
m

in
g 

ar
ea

. S
p

ri
n

g 
w

at
er

s 
ar

e 
7

2
º 

ye
ar

-

ro
u

n
d

. I
t 

w
as

 p
re

tt
y 

n
ip

py
 t

o
 m

e,
 v

is
it

in
g 

o
n

 a
 9

5
º 

d
ay

, b
u

t 
I k

n
o

w
 in

 t
h

e 
w

in
te

r 
m

o
n

th
s,

 7
2

º 
w

o
u

ld

fe
el

 t
o

as
ty

 w
ar

m
!

-56-



S
pr

in
g 

“b
oi

lin
g”

2
2

. T
h

e 
N

at
u

re
 D

ri
ve

T
h

e 
n

in
e-

m
ile

 li
m

e 
ro

ck
 r

o
ad

 t
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
N

at
u

re
 D

ri
ve

 (h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.fr
ie

n
d

so
fr

ef
u

ge
s.

o
rg

/n
at

u
re

-d
ri

ve
-g

u
id

e.
h

tm
l)

 in
 t

h
e 

Lo
w

er

Su
w

an
n

ee
 N

at
io

n
al

 W
ild

lif
e 

R
ef

u
ge

 w
ill

 t
ak

e 
yo

u
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 s
w

am
p

s,
 m

ar
sh

es
, m

ar
it

im
e 

h
am

m
o

ck
s,

 a
n

d
 p

in
e 

u
p

la
n

d
s.

 A

h
am

m
o

ck
, f

o
r 

yo
u

 la
n

d
lu

b
b

er
s,

 is
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 o
f t

re
es

 t
h

at
 g

ro
w

 o
n

 e
le

va
te

d
 a

re
as

, o
ft

en
 ju

st
 a

 fe
w

 in
ch

es
 h

ig
h

, s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
ed

 b
y

w
et

la
n

d
s 

o
r 

o
n

 s
lo

p
es

 b
et

w
ee

n
 w

et
la

n
d

s 
an

d
 u

p
la

n
d

s.
 T

h
ey

 fo
rm

 a
n

 e
co

lo
gi

ca
l i

sl
an

d
 w

it
h

in
 a

 c
o

n
tr

as
ti

n
g 

ec
o

sy
st

em
. 

K
ee

p
 y

o
u

r 
ey

es
 o

p
en

, a
n

d
 y

o
u

 ju
st

 m
ay

 s
p

o
t 

d
ee

r, 
al

lig
at

o
rs

, w
ild

 h
o

gs
, b

ea
rs

, b
o

b
ca

ts
, o

tt
er

s,
 fo

x,
 m

in
k,

 b
ir

d
s 

o
f p

re
y,

 a
n

d

w
ad

in
g 

b
ir

d
s.

Tr
ai

n 
D

ep
ot

 u
se

d 
fo

r t
he

 C
hi

ef
la

nd
 C

ha
m

be
r o

f C
om

m
er

ce
 a

nd
 M

us
eu

m

2
3

. T
h

e 
Tr

ai
n

 D
ep

o
t 

M
u

se
u

m

T
h

e 
1

9
1

3
 C

h
ie

�
an

d
 T

ra
in

 D
ep

o
t 

is
 n

o
w

 u
se

d
 fo

r 
a 

m
u

se
u

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
to

w
n’

s 
C

h
am

b
er

 o
f C

o
m

m
er

ce

(h
tt

p
s:

//
ch

ie
�

an
d

ch
am

b
er

.c
o

m
/)

. S
o

, y
o

u
 h

av
e 

th
e 

p
er

fe
ct

 “
ki

ll 
tw

o
 b

ir
d

s”
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y—

le
ar

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

C
h

ie
�

an
d

’s
 h

is
to

ry
 in

 a

h
is

to
ri

c 
ra

ilr
o

ad
 s

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ic
k 

u
p

 b
ro

ch
u

re
s 

fo
r 

o
th

er
 m

u
st

-s
ee

 s
p

o
ts

 in
 L

ev
y 

C
o

u
n

ty
. P

ro
 ti

p:
  l

ea
ve

 y
o

u
r 

ca
r 

h
er

e 
an

d
 ju

st

w
al

k 
d

o
w

n
 t

h
e 

b
lo

ck
 t

o
 t

h
e 

H
av

an
a 

C
u

b
an

 C
af

é 
fo

r 
lu

n
ch

!

2
4

. H
av

an
a 

C
u

b
an

 C
af

é

O
n

e 
o

f t
h

e 
n

ew
es

t 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

in
 C

h
ie

�
an

d
, t

h
e 

H
av

an
a 

C
u

b
an

 C
af

é 
(h

tt
p

s:
//

h
av

an
a-

cu
b

an
-c

af
e.

b
u

si
n

es
s.

si
te

/?

u
tm

_s
o

u
rc

e=
go

o
gl

em
yb

u
si

n
es

s&
u

tm
_m

ed
iu

m
=

re
fe

rr
al

), 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 a
 d

el
ic

io
u

s 
ta

st
e 

o
f C

u
b

an
 c

u
is

in
e.

 T
h

ei
r 

b
re

ad
 is

 b
ak

ed
 fr

es
h

ev
er

y 
m

o
rn

in
g.

 A
 lo

n
g 

ap
p

et
iz

er
 m

en
u

 a
llo

w
s 

yo
u

 t
o

 t
ry

 a
 s

m
al

l s
am

p
le

 o
f l

o
ts

 o
f n

ew
 fo

o
d

s.
 T

h
ei

r 
Ta

m
al

e 
is

 a
 h

an
d

-t
ie

d
 t

h
in

g 
o

f

b
ea

u
ty

! (
Ye

s,
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
er

 w
ill

 s
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 h

o
w

 t
o

 g
et

 in
to

 it
!)

 S
av

e 
ro

o
m

 fo
r 

a 
G

u
av

a 
P

as
te

lit
o

s!
 H

av
e 

I e
ve

r 
st

ee
re

d
 y

o
u

 w
ro

n
g?

2
5

. C
h

ie
f T

h
ea

tr
e

T
h

e 
Su

w
an

n
ee

 V
al

le
y 

P
la

ye
rs

 h
av

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 li
ve

 t
h

ea
tr

ic
al

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

fo
r 

ov
er

 3
7

 y
ea

rs
 (t

h
e 

o
ld

es
t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
th

ea
te

r 
in

 t
h

e

ar
ea

.) 
C

h
ie

f T
h

ea
tr

e’
s 

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.c
h

ie
ft

h
ea

tr
e.

o
rg

/)
 n

ex
t 

sh
o

w
 s

ta
rt

s 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
…

ge
t 

yo
u

r 
ti

ck
et

s 
ea

rl
y 

fo
r 

Th
e 

M
ira

cl
e

W
or

ke
r!

2
6

. B
o

n
u

s:
 P

ar
ty

 T
im

e

Fo
r 

a 
la

id
-b

ac
k 

�
sh

in
g 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y,
 C

ed
ar

 K
ey

 k
n

o
w

s 
h

o
w

 t
o

 t
h

ro
w

 a
 p

ar
ty

. T
h

e 
5

1
st

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

ea
fo

o
d

 F
es

ti
va

l i
s 

h
el

d
 e

ve
ry

 fa
ll.

P
la

n
 n

o
w

 fo
r 

a 
vi

si
t 

n
ex

t 
O

ct
o

b
er

. T
h

e 
fe

st
iv

al
 c

el
eb

ra
te

s 
th

e 
ar

ea
’s

 h
er

it
ag

e 
o

f �
sh

in
g.

 S
ea

fo
o

d
, a

rt
, c

ra
ft

s,
 lo

ca
l m

u
si

ci
an

s

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

m
u

si
c,

 a
nd

 fr
ee

 a
d

m
is

si
o

n
! W

h
o

 c
o

u
ld

 a
sk

 fo
r 

m
o

re
? 

U
h

, y
o

u
 s

ay
 y

ou
 c

o
u

ld
? 

W
el

l, 
h

o
w

 a
b

o
u

t 
a 

sc
ar

y 
tr

ai
n

 r
id

e?
 T

h
is

Le
vy

 C
o

u
n

ty
 e

ve
n

t 
is

 h
ap

p
en

in
g 

th
is

 w
ee

k 
(o

r 
yo

u
 c

o
u

ld
 p

la
n

 fo
r 

a 
tr

ip
 n

ex
t 

O
ct

o
b

er
!)

O
n

 t
h

at
 s

am
e 

O
ct

o
b

er
 t

ri
p

, c
h

ec
k 

th
e 

d
at

es
 fo

r 
W

ill
is

to
n’

s 
C

en
tr

al
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

P
ea

n
u

t 
Fe

st
iv

al
, h

el
d

 in
 e

ar
ly

 O
ct

o
b

er
.

T
h

e 
K

ir
by

 F
am

ily
 F

ar
m

 in
 W

ill
is

to
n

 h
o

st
s 

ev
en

ts
 t

h
ro

u
gh

o
u

t 
th

e 
ye

ar
. T

h
e 

o
n

lin
e 

ca
le

n
d

ar
 (h

tt
p

s:
//

w
w

w
.k

ir
by

fa
rm

.c
o

m
/)

 is

u
p

d
at

ed
 r

eg
u

la
rl

y.
 T

h
e 

W
ild

 W
es

t 
W

ee
ke

n
d

 s
ta

rt
s 

N
ov

em
b

er
 6

. A
n

d
 b

eg
in

n
in

g 
N

ov
em

b
er

 2
6

, t
h

e 
C

h
ri

st
m

as
 T

ra
in

 r
u

n
s 

u
n

ti
l

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

6
. J

u
st

 c
h

ec
k 

th
e 

sc
h

ed
u

le
 (h

tt
p

s:
//

vi
si

tn
at

u
re

co
as

t.
co

m
/e

ve
n

t/
ch

ri
st

m
as

-t
ra

in
/)

 fo
r 

d
at

es
 a

n
d

 t
im

es
.

T
h

er
e 

is
 n

o
 s

h
o

rt
ag

e 
o

f S
ea

fo
o

d
 F

es
ti

va
ls

 in
 t

h
es

e 
G

u
lf

si
d

e 
to

w
n

s.
 Y

an
ke

et
o

w
n

 h
as

 h
el

d
 it

s 
tw

o
-d

ay
 fe

st
iv

al
 t

h
e 

w
ee

ke
n

d

b
ef

o
re

 T
h

an
ks

gi
vi

n
g 

fo
r 

fo
rt

y 
ye

ar
s 

an
d

 in
cl

u
d

es
 a

rt
s 

an
d

 c
ra

ft
s—

th
in

k 
C

hr
is

tm
as

 sh
op

pi
ng

! T
h

is
 “o

ld
 F

lo
ri

d
a”

 c
o

as
ta

l v
ill

ag
e 

is

lo
ca

te
d

 o
n

 F
lo

ri
d

a’
s 

N
at

u
re

 C
o

as
t.

C
u

b
an

 S
an

d
w

ic
h

C
o

rn
 h

u
sk

 w
ra

p
p

ed
 T

am
al

e

-57-



C
ir

cl
e 

th
e 

w
ee

ke
n

d
 o

f A
p

ri
l 9

 o
n

 y
o

u
r 

ca
le

n
d

ar
, t

o
o

. C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 h

o
st

s 
th

e 
O

ld
 F

lo
ri

d
a 

C
el

eb
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f t
h

e 
A

rt
s

(h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.c
ed

ar
ke

ya
rt

sf
es

ti
va

l.c
o

m
/)

, a
 ju

ri
ed

 e
ve

n
t 

o
f 1

0
0

 �
n

e 
ar

ti
st

s 
an

d
 c

ra
ft

sm
en

. I
t 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 n

am
ed

 o
n

e 
o

f t
h

e 
to

p

sm
al

l-
to

w
n

 a
rt

 fa
ir

s 
in

 A
m

er
ic

a.
 In

 t
h

e 
b

ea
ch

fr
o

n
t 

C
it

y 
P

ar
k,

 v
en

d
o

rs
 s

er
ve

 u
p

 h
o

m
em

ad
e 

go
o

d
ie

s 
an

d
 lo

ca
l s

ea
fo

o
d

 (y
es

, m
o

re

se
af

o
o

d
…

yu
m

!)

So
 m

an
y 

m
o

re
 e

ve
n

ts
 h

ap
p

en
 in

 t
h

e 
co

n
�

n
es

 o
f L

ev
y 

C
o

u
n

ty
. F

o
r 

a 
co

m
p

le
te

 li
st

, v
is

it
 N

at
u

re
 C

o
as

t’
s

(h
tt

p
s:

//
vi

si
tn

at
u

re
co

as
t.

co
m

/e
ve

n
ts

) w
eb

si
te

.

M
y 

ti
m

e 
in

 L
ev

y 
C

o
u

n
ty

 w
as

 n
o

t 
n

ea
rl

y 
lo

n
g 

en
o

u
gh

 w
h

en
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 a
ll 

th
e 

th
in

gs
 t

o
 s

ee
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

th
e 

se
af

o
o

d
 t

o
 t

ry
!

If
 t

h
es

e 
2

5
 id

ea
s 

(o
k,

 3
0

) d
o

n’
t 

�
ll 

al
l y

o
u

r 
ti

m
e,

 t
h

en
 p

ic
k 

u
p

 a
 b

o
o

kl
et

, O
ld

 C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 W

al
ki

ng
 T

ou
r G

ui
de

 B
oo

k,
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 �

n
d

 a

to
u

r 
o

f 5
3

 h
is

to
ri

c 
si

te
s 

in
 C

ed
ar

 K
ey

!

I n
ee

d
 a

n
o

th
er

 v
is

it
, t

o
 b

e 
su

re
, b

u
t 

I t
h

in
k 

I c
o

u
ld

 le
ar

n
 t

o
 lo

ve
 t

h
e 

p
ac

e 
o

f l
if

e 
in

 C
ed

ar
 K

ey
 a

n
d

 b
e 

ju
st

 a
s 

h
ap

py
 a

s 
a 

cl
am

!

If 
yo

u 
w

er
e 

in
 C

ed
ar

 K
ey

, y
ou

’d
 b

e 
ha

pp
y 

as
 a

 c
la

m
 to

o!

-58-



 

-59-



 

-60-



 

-61-



 

-62-



 
• HOME 

• DESTINATIONS 
o  

• FEATURES 
o  

VISITING CEDAR LAKES WOODS AND GARDENS 
 

What do you do with a limestone quarry that has been abandoned for a hundred years? Turn it 
into a lush botanical garden, of course. The Cedar Lakes Woods and Gardens property was 
originally mined for limestone rock to lay the foundation of Florida’s Highway 27, then deserted, 
leaving behind the beginnings of a swamp. 
 
 
 

-63-

https://www.gardendestinations.com/
https://www.gardendestinations.com/category/destinations/
https://www.gardendestinations.com/category/features/
https://www.gardendestinations.com/
https://www.gardendestinations.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Cedar-Lakes-41-%C2%A9JO-CLARK-web.jpg


Who Started Cedar Lakes—and Why? 
Army veteran and retired endodontist Raymond T. Webber bought the quarry in Williston, 
Florida, over thirty years ago with visions of his very own fishing hole dancing in his head. He 
was teaching at the University of Florida, writing chapters of dental textbooks, and lecturing 
nationally and internationally. In his spare time, he enjoyed traveling and fishing. 

 
The waterfalls / Jo Clark 

Work on the quarry soon got out of hand. Rocks were rolled into place using wheelbarrows to 
create walls and walkways. Handrails were added on the upper levels for safety. With a small 
workforce, he made islands, separate pools, waterfalls, pavilions, and bridges. Dr. Webber soon 
had a new hobby—gardening—to keep him occupied as he added much-needed greenery to this 
oasis. It grew into the 20 acres of gardens and water features you enjoy today—plus 64 
woodland acres surrounding it. He sounds like a “go big or go home” kind of guy. 

The idea of a public garden developed after HGTV’s Extreme Backyards filmed an episode at 
Dr. Webber’s home in 2006. The 2008 article in Ocala Homes magazine alerted Floridians to 
this hidden jewel. These two events led to people showing up at the gate to see it for themselves. 
Webber formed a non-profit company in 2013, and the 84-acre Cedar Lakes Woods and 
Gardens opened to the public in January 2014. That first year, 796 people visited the garden. In 
2020, some 27,500 visitors were admitted—from as far away as Israel, France, Australia, and 
England. 
 
What Can You Expect to See? 
Dr. Webber’s zeal for gardening equaled his enthusiasm for fishing. Now he is credited with 
creating one of the most unusual botanical gardens you can find. Webber donated the 20-acre 
botanical garden to the non-profit foundation he created and the 64-acre woodlands that surround 

-64-

https://cedarlakeswoodsandgarden.com/
https://cedarlakeswoodsandgarden.com/
https://www.gardendestinations.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Cedar-Lakes-58-%C2%A9JO-CLARK-web.jpg


it to Conservation Florida to keep it protected in the future. You may also wander through these 
woods during your visit to the garden. 
 

 
A relaxing spot in the garden / Jo Clark 

Today, a far cry from his private fishing hole vision, the garden promotes peace, humane 
education, animal rescue, and environmental preservation. Dr. Webber still lives on the property 
and is happy to see so many people enjoying his concept. 

The Garden is designated by the National Wildlife Federation as a Certified Wildlife Habitat. 
The plaque on the grounds states that “This property is recognized for its commitment to 
sustainably provide essential elements of wildlife, habitat: food, water, cover and places to raise 
young.” 

Most days of the year White Ibis birds greet visitors. The gardens’ entry lake is the largest body 
of water in Williston that is surrounded by trees. Williston has lots of pastureland for cattle and 
horses, which means lots of flies—the favorite snack of Cattle Egret birds. These Egrets leave to 
winter in a warmer climate but the White Ibis assumes their greeting duties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-65-

https://www.conserveflorida.org/
https://www.willistonfl.org/
https://www.gardendestinations.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Cedar-Lakes-32-%C2%A9JO-CLARK-web.jpg


 

 
Spiraling Red Tower Ginger / Jo Clark 

Favorite Plants 
The terraced walls of the quarry are filled with hundreds (that number may be closer to a 
thousand) of varieties of flowers and plants. Because of the topography, semitropical plants 
thrive year-round. When there is a danger of an overnight freeze, the waterfalls are left running, 
keeping the air warmer and ensuring plant survival. 

Like children, the plants are all unique and equally loved–well, almost. The staff does have a soft 
spot in their hearts for the Red Tower Ginger, Costus comosus var. bakeri. This tall ginger has 
spiraling foliage, topped by vibrant red bracts and striking yellow flowers. The plant is common 
in Costa Rica but its conservation status is critically endangered. Cedar Lakes is propagating the 
beautiful plant and they do sell them. 
Garden Staff 
I know you’re thinking that this sounds like a big place for one man to operate. And you’re right. 
Fortunately, he has Lori Wallace to help with the management duties. At the age of 18, Lori 
moved from Connecticut to St. Augustine with her then-boyfriend’s family. Now a retired 
bartender, she has been married to that boy for 40 years. She met Dr. Webber in 1985 when he 
frequented the restaurant in Ocala where she worked. 

-66-

https://www.gardendestinations.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Cedar-Lakes-44-Spiraling-Red-Tower-Ginger-%C2%A9JO-CLARK-web.jpg


Fast-forward 20 years, Lori and her husband find themselves in Williston, and so does Dr. 
Webber. She asked him for a job, and 15 years later she is still tending thirsty plants instead of 
thirsty people. Lori has grown with the garden. When asked about her favorite spot in all the 
garden, without hesitation, she will tell you, “The Japanese Garden!” 

The staff is friendly and happy to provide you with tips. Ask which way to go and they’ll gladly 
advise. There may be tips about which trails are underwater, too, if there has been rain in the area 
recently. 

A Link to Royalty 
As you walk the trails, expect to encounter butterflies, frogs, turtles, squirrels, owls, birds, koi, 
and other wildlife. A regal swan named Guinevere reigns over the island. She is of the English 
royal bloodline—yes, really. Lady Guinevere descended from the Queens’ Royal English flock. 

 
 
Did you know that in England, since the 12th century, only the ruling monarch can own swans? 
It’s true! Any mute swans in the country are the monarch’s property. In 1957, residents of 
Lakeland, Florida, requested that Queen Elizabeth II donate a pair of mute swans. Today, more 
than 80 descendants of that pair live in Lakeland. The Parks and Recreation Department 
maintains a healthy population through yearly sales to thin the flock. Winning the Lakeland 2013 
lottery to purchase a pair of swans, Cedar Lakes became the new home of Guinevere and 
Lancelot. Sadly, Lancelot now resides in the garden’s Pet Cemetery, and lonely Guinevere rules 
the lower-level ponds accompanied by her male guards—two Pekin ducks. 
Garden employee Teresa Mankin wrote to Queen Elizabeth in 2020, sharing pictures of 
Guinevere and Cedar Lakes. She received a kind reply from Buckingham Palace, from the 
Queen’s correspondence manager. 

 

-67-

https://www.townandcountrymag.com/society/tradition/a28409570/queen-elizabeth-swans/
https://www.gardendestinations.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Cedar-Lakes-28-%C2%A9JO-CLARK-web.jpg


 
Special Events 
If you visit the gardens in late October, you can participate in the Ghouls Halloween. Scary 
scenes and candy stations are set up to delight visitors. Unfortunately, the event will not be held 
in 2021, but you have plenty of time to work on your costume for next year. 

The Quarry Light Show illuminates the Gardens for the Christmas season. Guests walk along the 
paths on the top level, viewing the lights below. Garden manager Lori Wallace excitedly says, 
“Lights are everywhere! It is so spectacular—especially with the reflections on the water.” Food 
trucks line up and hot cocoa and cider stands are located throughout the gardens. Come for the 
afternoon and stay for the nighttime event for the same ticket. Entrance is available at a reduced 
price if you come just for the lights. 

 
A walkway over the lake / Jo Clark 

In the Works 
The Glen Brown Greenhouse and Cacti Collection is nearly half complete. Glen Brown of 
Hawthorne, Florida, collected and propagated cacti, creating the most extensive collection in the 
southeastern United States. His daughters have donated the collection to Cedar Lakes Woods and 
Gardens. 

The Orchard Garden continues to grow, literally. In 2019, they expanded to add pear, plum, 
mulberry, tangerine, persimmon, loquat, and banana trees. Dr. Webber planted the original 
orchard over 20 years ago with an assortment of fruit trees. Passing through the orchard, you will 
reach the roses and azaleas. Remember, I told you not to skip any paths. 

-68-

https://www.gardendestinations.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Cedar-Lakes-38-%C2%A9JO-CLARK-web.jpg


Future Plans 
Cedar Lakes Woods and Gardens are fabulous, but they are far from finished. Short-range plans 
include an improved entry road, more annual events, more plantings, and improved walkways. 
The long-range plans for Cedar Lakes include more wheel-chair accessible walkways; a 
welcome center for weddings, educational seminars, and special events; an aviary; a bat house; 
and the purchase of additional adjacent woodlands. 

WHEN YOU GO: 
 

 
Gazebo for relaxing / Jo Clark 

Lori’s Insider Tips: Don’t miss the swinging bridge or the hidden waterfall behind the pavilion. 
And I agree. I visited on an unbearably hot August day. Walking behind that waterfall was a 
cooling highlight of my visit. Make sure you have time to explore the whole garden. Walk every 
path, or you will miss special treats—like the orchard or the pet cemetery. Over the years, 
animals near and dear to the park have crossed the Rainbow Bridge. They rest in a quiet spot in 

-69-

https://www.gardendestinations.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Cedar-Lakes-13-%C2%A9JO-CLARK-web.jpg


the woods: Daisy (a blind deer), four dogs, cats, a rabbit, a goose, and Sir Lancelot (Guinevere’s 
mate.) 
Pro Tips: Wear non-slip shoes since many of the walkways can be wet. And, bring a picnic 
lunch. Tables and benches are tucked into quiet corners throughout the gardens, allowing you to 
drink in the views while you relax. 
Planning Your Visit 

Cedar Lakes Woods and Gardens is in Williston, Florida. It is 24 miles from Gainesville, 28 
miles from Ocala, and only 20 minutes off I-75. A beautiful part of Natural North Florida, this 
place is worth the drive. 
The garden is open daily except Wednesdays, but groups of 10 or more need an appointment. 
Admission is charged. Children must be supervised at all times, and pets must be on a leash. 

See/Stay/Eat 
Nearby you will find: 
– Blue Grotto Springs (diving and scuba lessons—such fun to watch) 
– Levy County Quilt Museum (Chiefland, 22 miles) 
– Devil’s Den Spring (cabin & trailer rentals, tent & RV camping) 
– Two Hawk Hammock (cottage) 
– Williston Crossing (RV park) 
– Herlong Mansion B & B (only 12 miles to Micanopy) 
– Sweetwater Branch Inn B & B (Gainesville, 24 miles) 
– The Ivy House Restaurant (you have GOT to order the fried chicken!) 
– Havana Cuban Café (Chiefland, 25 miles) 
– Blue Highway a Pizzeria (Micanopy, 12 miles) 
– Pearl Country Store & Barbecue (Micanopy, 12 miles) 
— 
Jo Clark is a retired teacher. She is road tripping, photographing, and writing about beautiful 
places, great food, wineries and their delicious wines; her articles and photographs may be seen 
at Have Glass, Will Travel and on Instagram she’s known as Jo Goes Everywhere (she sure 
tries!) 
 

-70-

https://www.naturalnorthflorida.com/
https://divebluegrotto.com/
https://levycountyquiltmuseum.org/
http://www.devilsden.com/
https://twohawkhammock.com/
http://willistoncrossingrv.com/
https://herlong.com/
https://sweetwaterinn.com/
https://www.ivyhousefl.com/
https://havana-cuban-cafe.business.site/?utm_source=googlemybusiness&utm_medium=referral
https://www.bluehighwaypizza.com/
http://pearlcountrystore.com/
http://www.haveglasswilltravel.com/
https://www.instagram.com/jogoeseverywhere/


-71-



-72-



-73-



-74-



-75-



-76-



-77-



-78-



-79-



-80-



VISIT NATURAL NORTH FLORIDA PROGRAM 
         LIVE IN NORTH FLORIDA! 
$500.00 per Episode Shoot 
 
1 County per Episode Shoot Receives: 

• 2 item/locations per shoot Maximum 
(Must be within a 20-minute range of each shoot.) 

• Segment to run on Live In Tallahassee at the discretion of the 
LIT producer and host, normally within a few weeks of the shoot. 

• Logo placement on Live In Tallahassee Website 
• Logo placement on Facebook Page 
• Episode to be placed on YouTube Channel 
• Episode to be sent to hosting County 

 
*If there is an early morning or late evening event/shoot which would require the 
LIT cameraperson and host to be in the destination county at an early time, 
rooms need to be secured for these (2 to 3) individuals. 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

ADDITIONAL OPPORTUNITY 
$500.00 Commercial & Promo Package for the Month 
 
County will be The Featured North Florida County for one (1) Month. 
They will receive: 

➢ 1 – :30 second Commercial Spot Created 
▪ From your film provided or film 

captured during the filming 
▪ Or from hi-res photos placed into a 

template (ie. Visit Madison) 
➢ 3 - :30 second Commercials run throughout the 

month on the LIT. 
➢ Promos for the county all month long with LIT 
➢ Commercial will be supplied to the County to use as 

desired in the future.  
$1,000.00 TOTAL  
Your County will be the featured North Florida County of the Month! 
    # # # # # 

-81-



-82-



   

 

HB 6075  2022 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb6075-00 

Page 1 of 5 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

A bill to be entitled 1 

An act relating to tourist development taxes; amending 2 

s. 125.0104, F.S.; removing a provision requiring a 3 

specified percentage of all tourist development tax 4 

revenues to be used to promote and advertise tourism; 5 

providing an effective date. 6 

 7 

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 8 

 9 

 Section 1.  Paragraph (a) of subsection (5) of section 10 

125.0104, Florida Statutes, is amended to read: 11 

 125.0104  Tourist development tax; procedure for levying; 12 

authorized uses; referendum; enforcement.— 13 

 (5)  AUTHORIZED USES OF REVENUE.— 14 

 (a)  All tax revenues received pursuant to this section by 15 

a county imposing the tourist development tax shall be used by 16 

that county for the following purposes only: 17 

 1.  To acquire, construct, extend, enlarge, remodel, 18 

repair, improve, maintain, operate, or promote one or more: 19 

 a.  Publicly owned and operated convention centers, sports 20 

stadiums, sports arenas, coliseums, or auditoriums within the 21 

boundaries of the county or subcounty special taxing district in 22 

which the tax is levied; 23 

 b.  Auditoriums that are publicly owned but are operated by 24 

organizations that are exempt from federal taxation pursuant to 25 

-83-



   

 

HB 6075  2022 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb6075-00 

Page 2 of 5 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

26 U.S.C. s. 501(c)(3) and open to the public, within the 26 

boundaries of the county or subcounty special taxing district in 27 

which the tax is levied; or 28 

 c.  Aquariums or museums that are publicly owned and 29 

operated or owned and operated by not-for-profit organizations 30 

and open to the public, within the boundaries of the county or 31 

subcounty special taxing district in which the tax is levied; 32 

 2.  To promote zoological parks that are publicly owned and 33 

operated or owned and operated by not-for-profit organizations 34 

and open to the public; 35 

 3.  To promote and advertise tourism in this state and 36 

nationally and internationally; however, if tax revenues are 37 

expended for an activity, service, venue, or event, the 38 

activity, service, venue, or event must have as one of its main 39 

purposes the attraction of tourists as evidenced by the 40 

promotion of the activity, service, venue, or event to tourists; 41 

 4.  To fund convention bureaus, tourist bureaus, tourist 42 

information centers, and news bureaus as county agencies or by 43 

contract with the chambers of commerce or similar associations 44 

in the county, which may include any indirect administrative 45 

costs for services performed by the county on behalf of the 46 

promotion agency; 47 

 5.  To finance beach park facilities, or beach, channel, 48 

estuary, or lagoon improvement, maintenance, renourishment, 49 

restoration, and erosion control, including construction of 50 

-84-



   

 

HB 6075  2022 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb6075-00 

Page 3 of 5 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

beach groins and shoreline protection, enhancement, cleanup, or 51 

restoration of inland lakes and rivers to which there is public 52 

access as those uses relate to the physical preservation of the 53 

beach, shoreline, channel, estuary, lagoon, or inland lake or 54 

river. However, any funds identified by a county as the local 55 

matching source for beach renourishment, restoration, or erosion 56 

control projects included in the long-range budget plan of the 57 

state's Beach Management Plan, pursuant to s. 161.091, or funds 58 

contractually obligated by a county in the financial plan for a 59 

federally authorized shore protection project may not be used or 60 

loaned for any other purpose. In counties of fewer than 100,000 61 

population, up to 10 percent of the revenues from the tourist 62 

development tax may be used for beach park facilities; or 63 

 6.  To acquire, construct, extend, enlarge, remodel, 64 

repair, improve, maintain, operate, or finance public facilities 65 

within the boundaries of the county or subcounty special taxing 66 

district in which the tax is levied, if the public facilities 67 

are needed to increase tourist-related business activities in 68 

the county or subcounty special district and are recommended by 69 

the county tourist development council created pursuant to 70 

paragraph (4)(e). Tax revenues may be used for any related land 71 

acquisition, land improvement, design and engineering costs, and 72 

all other professional and related costs required to bring the 73 

public facilities into service. As used in this subparagraph, 74 

the term "public facilities" means major capital improvements 75 

-85-



   

 

HB 6075  2022 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb6075-00 

Page 4 of 5 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

that have a life expectancy of 5 or more years, including, but 76 

not limited to, transportation, sanitary sewer, solid waste, 77 

drainage, potable water, and pedestrian facilities. Tax revenues 78 

may be used for these purposes only if the following conditions 79 

are satisfied: 80 

 a.  In the county fiscal year immediately preceding the 81 

fiscal year in which the tax revenues were initially used for 82 

such purposes, at least $10 million in tourist development tax 83 

revenue was received; 84 

 b.  The county governing board approves the use for the 85 

proposed public facilities by a vote of at least two-thirds of 86 

its membership; 87 

 c.  No more than 70 percent of the cost of the proposed 88 

public facilities will be paid for with tourist development tax 89 

revenues, and sources of funding for the remaining cost are 90 

identified and confirmed by the county governing board; and 91 

 d.  At least 40 percent of all tourist development tax 92 

revenues collected in the county are spent to promote and 93 

advertise tourism as provided by this subsection; and 94 

 d.e.  An independent professional analysis, performed at 95 

the expense of the county tourist development council, 96 

demonstrates the positive impact of the infrastructure project 97 

on tourist-related businesses in the county. 98 

 99 

Subparagraphs 1. and 2. may be implemented through service 100 

-86-



   

 

HB 6075  2022 

 

 

 

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

hb6075-00 

Page 5 of 5 

F L O R I D A  H O U S E  O F  R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S 

 

 

 

contracts and leases with lessees that have sufficient expertise 101 

or financial capability to operate such facilities. 102 

 Section 2.  This act shall take effect July 1, 2022. 103 

-87-



-88-



Florida Senate - 2022 SB 434 

 

 

  

By Senator Hooper 

 

 

 

 

 

16-00588-22 2022434__ 

 Page 1 of 1  

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. 

A bill to be entitled 1 

An act relating to Florida tourism marketing; amending 2 

ss. 288.1226 and 288.923, F.S.; delaying the scheduled 3 

repeal of provisions governing the Florida Tourism 4 

Industry Marketing Corporation and the Division of 5 

Tourism Marketing of Enterprise Florida, Inc., 6 

respectively; providing an effective date. 7 

  8 

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida: 9 

 10 

Section 1. Subsection (14) of section 288.1226, Florida 11 

Statutes, is amended to read: 12 

288.1226 Florida Tourism Industry Marketing Corporation; 13 

use of property; board of directors; duties; audit.— 14 

(14) REPEAL.—This section is repealed October 1, 2031 2023, 15 

unless reviewed and saved from repeal by the Legislature. 16 

Section 2. Subsection (6) of section 288.923, Florida 17 

Statutes, is amended to read: 18 

288.923 Division of Tourism Marketing; definitions; 19 

responsibilities.— 20 

(6) This section is repealed October 1, 2031 2023, unless 21 

reviewed and saved from repeal by the Legislature. 22 

Section 3. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law. 23 

-89-



-90-



 
The Original Florida Tourism Task Force MEMBERS as of 9/23/2021 

 
ALACHUA COUNTY 
($15,000 - 3 votes) 
 
Vacant 
 
Brian Avery 
Lecturer 
University of Florida Department of Sport 
Management and Director of Engaged Learning 
and Outreach 
FLG 302 P.O. Box 118208 
Gainesville, FL  32611 
(w) 352.294.6922 
brian@briandavery.com 
 
Ron Gromoll 
Visiting Lecturer 
University of Florida Department of Tourism, 
Hospitality & Event Management 
FLG 190A, P.O. Box 118205 
Gainesville, FL  32611 
(w) 352.294.3064 
rgromoll@ufl.edu 
 
BRADFORD COUNTY 
($3,000 - 2 votes) 
 
William Sexton, Vice-Chair 
Bradford County Attorney 
945 North Temple Avenue 
Starke, FL  32091-2210 
will_sexton@bradfordcountyfl.gov 
(w) 904.368.3902 
 
The Honorable Daniel Riddick 
Bradford County  
Board of County Commissioners 
945 North Temple Avenue 
Starke, FL  32091 
(w) 352.473.7033 
(o) 904.966.6327 
(f) 352.473.5907 
bccriddick@yahoo.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COLUMBIA COUNTY 
($8,000 3 votes) 
 
Rod Butler 
General Manager 
Holiday Inn Hotel and Suites 
213 SW Commerce Boulevard 
Lake City, FL  32025-1501 
(w) 386.487.1080 
gm@hilakecityfl.com 
 
Alden Rosner 
Sports Marketing Director 
Columbia County 
Tourist Development Council 
P.O. Box 1847 
Lake City, FL  32056 
(w) 386.719.1453 
arosner@columbiacountyfla.com 
www.southsidesportscomplex.com 
 
Paula R. Vann 
Executive Director 
Columbia County 
Tourist Development Council 
P.O. Box 1847 
Lake City, FL  32056 
(w) 386.758.1312 
pvann@columbiacountyfla.com 
www.springsrus.com 
 
DIXIE COUNTY 
($3,000 - 2 votes) 
 
The Honorable Ryan Fulford 
Cross City Councilmember  
Town of Cross City 
P.O. Box 417 
Cross City, FL 32628  
(w) 352.498.3306 
councilseat3@townofcrosscity.com  
 
Russ McCallister 
Suwannee Guides and Outfitters 
PO Box 1345 
Old Town, FL 32680 
(w) 352.542.8331 
(h) 352.325.1520 
(c) 352.258.0189 
russ776@bellsouth.net 
www.visitdixie.com 
www.suwanneeguides.com 
 

-91-

mailto:brian@briandavery.com
mailto:rgromoll@ufl.edu
mailto:will_sexton@bradfordcountyfl.gov
mailto:bccriddick@yahoo.com
mailto:gm@hilakecityfl.com
mailto:arosner@columbiacountyfla.com
mailto:pvann@columbiacountyfla.com
http://www.springsrus.com/
mailto:councilseat3@townofcrosscity.com
mailto:russ776@bellsouth.net
http://www.visitdixie.com/
http://www.suwanneeguides.com/


 
 
GILCHRIST COUNTY 
($2,000 - 2 votes) 
 
The Honorable Lee Deen 
Mayor, City of Trenton 
114 North Main Street 
Trenton, FL  32693-3440 
(o) 352.463.4007 
WLDeen6757@gmail.com 
 
Patricia Watson 
Executive Administrative Assistant 
City of Trenton 
500 North Main Street 
Trenton, FL  32693 
(w) 352.463.4000 
pwatson@trentonflorida.org 
 
HAMILTON COUNTY 
($1,000 - 2 votes) 
 
Vacant 
 
Vacant 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
($2,000 - 2 votes) 
 
Katrina Richardson 
Executive Director 
Monticello-Jefferson County  
Chamber of Commerce 
420 West Washington Street 
Monticello, FL 32344 
(w) 850.997.5552 
info@monticellojeffersonfl.com 
 
David Ward 
Monticello-Jefferson County  
Tourism Development Council 
420 West Washington Street 
Monticello, FL 32344 
(w) 850.519.5543 
dwardpa@embarqmail.com 
 
LAFAYETTE COUNTY 
($1,000 - 1 vote) 
 
Craig Colton, Chair 
Suwannee River Rendezvous 
828 NE Primrose Road 
Mayo, FL 32066 
(w) 386.294.2510 
craigcolton@suwanneeriverrendezvous.com 

 
LEVY COUNTY 
($4,000 - 2 votes) 
 
Carol McQueen 
9207 Florida Street 
Fanning Springs, FL  32693 
(h) 352.221.2946 
 carolmcqueen44@gmail.com 
 
Tisha Whitehurst 
Director 
Levy County Visitors Bureau 
607 South West 1st Avenue 
Williston, FL 32696  
(w) 352.528.4030 
tourism@visitnaturecoast.com 
 
MADISON COUNTY 
($3,000 - 2 votes) 
 
Jackie Blount 
Madison County  
Chamber of Commerce & Tourism 
182 NW College Loop 
Madison, FL 32340 
(c) 850.673.1046 
jacquelyneblount@yahoo.com 
 
Marlene Squires-Swanson 
Madison County  
Chamber of Commerce & Tourism 
182 NW College Loop 
Madison, FL 32340 
(w) 850.973.2788 
marlene@madisonfl.org 
 
SUWANNEE COUNTY 
($4,000 - 2 votes) 
 
Charissa Setzer 
Marketing Coordinator 
Suwannee County  
Tourism Development Council  
220 Pine Avenue SW 
Live Oak, FL 32064 
(w) 386.330.2220 
(c) 386.688.3871 
charissas@suwcountyfl.gov 
www.visitsuwannee.com 
 
 
 
 
 

-92-

mailto:WLDeen6757@gmail.com
mailto:pwatson@trentonflorida.org
mailto:info@monticellojeffersonfl.com
mailto:dwardpa@embarqmail.com
mailto:craigcolton@suwanneeriverrendezvous.com
mailto:carolmcqueen44@gmail.com
mailto:tourism@visitnaturecoast.com
mailto:jacquelyneblount@yahoo.com
file://America/Shared/Economic%20Development/Original%20Florida/Members%20&%20Volunteers/marlene@madisonfl.org
mailto:charissas@suwcountyfl.gov
http://www.visitsuwannee.com/


 
 
Teena Peavy, Secretary/Treasurer 
Marketing Director 
Spirit of the Suwannee Music Park 
3076 95th Drive 
Live Oak, Florida 32060 
(w) 386.364.1683 
teena@musicliveshere.com 
www.musiclivesehere.com 
 
TAYLOR COUNTY 
($4,000 - 2 votes) 
 
Dawn Perez 
Executive Director 
Taylor County Chamber of Commerce 
428 North Jefferson Street 
Perry, FL 32347 
(w) 850.584.5366 
(c) 850.843.0992 
taylorchamber@fairpoint.net  
www.taylorcountychamber.com 
 
Sandy Beach 
20845 Keaton Beach Drive 
Perry, FL  32348 
850.578.2898 
(c) 850.843.1546 
sandybeach8431546@gmail.com 
 
UNION COUNTY 
($1,000 - 1 vote) 
 
Dale Walker 
City Manager 
City of Lake Butler 
200 SW 1st Street 
Lake Butler, Fl. 32054-2016 
(w) 386.496.3401 
dwalker@cityoflakebutler.com  
 
WAKULLA COUNTY 
($3,000 - 2 votes) 
 
Natalie Knowles 
Procurement and Contract Coordinator 
Wakulla County Board of County 
Commissioners 
3093 Crawfordville Hwy. 
Crawfordville, FL  32327 
(w) 850.926.0919 
nknowles@mywakulla.com 
www.visitwakulla.com 
 
 

 
Thomas Herndon 
Outreach Coordinator 
Wakulla County Tourist Development Council 
P.O. Box 1263 
Crawfordville, FL  32327 
(w) 850.745.7713 
therndon@mywakulla.com 
www.visitwakulla.com 
 
STAFF 
 
Lauren Yeatter 
Senior Planner 
Visit Natural North Florida 
2009 NW 67th Place 
Gainesville, FL 32653 
(w) 352.955.2200 ext. 113 
yeatter@ncfrpc.org 
www.visitnaturalnorthflorida.com 
 
Scott R. Koons 
Executive Director 
Visit Natural North Florida 
2009 NW 67th Place 
Gainesville, FL 32653 
(w) 352.955.2200 ext. 101 
koons@ncfrpc.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
:\original florida\members & volunteers\of member list 9-23-
2021.docx 

-93-

mailto:teena@musicliveshere.com
http://www.musiclivesehere.com/
http://www.taylorcountychamber.com/
mailto:sandybeach8431546@gmail.com
mailto:dwalker@cityoflakebutler.com
mailto:nknowles@mywakulla.com
http://www.visitwakulla.com/
mailto:therndon@mywakulla.com
http://www.visitwakulla.com/
mailto:yeatter@ncfrpc.org
http://www.visitnaturalnorthflorida.com/
mailto:koons@ncfrpc.org


-94-



 
THE ORIGINAL FLORIDA TOURISM TASK FORCE 

VOLUNTEERS, CONSULTANTS AND OTHERS 
 

as of 9/23/2021 
 

VOLUNTEERS, CONSULTANTS AND OTHERS 
 
Donna Creamer - Travel Show Coordinator 
Staff Assistant 
Gilchrist County Tourist Development Council 
209 SE 1st Street 
Trenton, FL  32693 
(w) 352.463.3198 
(c) 352.210.1827 
dcreamer@gilchrist.fl.us 
www.VisitGilchristCounty.com 
 
Jo Clark - Blogger 
319 14th Avenue South 
Surfside Beach, SC29575 
(c) 843.446.4441 
jo@southernexposure.us  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
r:\original florida\members & volunteers\of volunteers list 9-23-2021.docx 
 

-95-

mailto:dcreamer@gilchrist.fl.us
mailto:jo@southernexposure.us


-96-



R:\Original Florida\Task Force Meetings\Meeting Notices and Schedules\2022\2022 meeting schedule by county.xlsx

2022
Visit Natural North Florida
Meeting Dates and Counties

Third Thursday of each month, subject to change with advance notice.

January 20: Alachua
Bradford

February 17: Columbia
Dixie

March 17: Gilchrist
Hamilton

April 21: Jefferson
Lafayette

May 19: Levy
Madison

June 16: Suwannee
Taylor

July 21: Union
Wakulla

August 18:

September 15:

October 20: 

November 17:

December 16: Alachua County (Council Office)

tbd

Suwannee County

Wakulla County

Jefferson County

Gilchrist County

tbd

tbd

tbd

tbd

Lafayette County

tbd

-97-



-98-


	DEO RRDG Proposed Program 2020-21.09.17.20xlsx
	The 25 Best Things to do in Levy County - Visit Natural North Florida
	Micanopy_CedarLakes_articles
	VISITING CEDAR LAKES WOODS AND GARDENS
	Who Started Cedar Lakes—and Why?
	What Can You Expect to See?
	Favorite Plants
	Garden Staff
	A Link to Royalty
	Special Events
	In the Works
	Future Plans
	WHEN YOU GO:


	HB6075
	OF member list 9-23-2021
	Carol McQueen
	Dale Walker

	OF volunteers list 9-23-2021
	2021 meeting schedule by county_210819
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPCE66.tmp
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	ADP66FA.tmp
	MEETING NOTICE

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPF4FB.tmp
	MEETING NOTICE




